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Chairman’s Statement

BV e

Dear Shareholders,

I present to the Shareholders the annual results of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 March 2014 (“FY2014”).

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

For the year under review, the Group’s operating hotel located in Xiangfan,
Hubei province contributed hotel rental income and food & beverage
(“F&B”) revenue of HK$0.8 million and HK$0.1 million, respectively
compared with the last financial year (“FY 2013”) of HK$2.7 million of
hotel rental income, and HK$0.4 million of F&B revenue. Decrease in hotel
rental income and food & beverage was due to the disposal of the hotel on

31 May 2013.

The Group’s office buildings located in Yingkou, Liaoning province and
in Wuhan, Hubei province contributed rental income of HK$5.1 million,
compared with the last financial year (“FY 2013”) of HK$3.5 million.
Rental income increased due to the full year operations of the property

located in Wuhan, Hubei province.

During the year, the Group has signed six equity transfer agreements for
disposing six companies in Xiangfan, Buerjin, Xian, Tonghua, Wuhan and
Jinggangshan. The gains on the disposals of Xian, Tonghua, Wuhan and
Jinggangshan have not been included as the equity transfers have not yet

been completed.

With continuous cost control measure implementation, staff costs have
decreased from HK$11.9 million in FY2013 to HK$10.4 million in
FY2014. Other operating expenses increased from HK$14.1 million last year
to HK$26.7 million in FY2014 mainly due to a reversal of a provision for
bad debt of HK$4.1 million in FY2013, a written off of property, plant and
equipment of HK$2.8 million and more corporate expenses incurred in this

year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

For FY2014, the Group recorded a net loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$45.3 million (FY2013: HK$70.8 million). Total
comprehensive loss attributed to equity holders of the Company was
HK$48.3 million due to realization of the gains from the completion of the
disposal of “U” Inns & Hotel (Xiangfan) Hotel Management Co. Limited
(“Xiangfan”), “U” Inns & Hotel Management (Tulufan Prefecture) Co.
Limited (“Tulufan”) and “U” Inns (Buerjin) Hotel Management Company
Limited (“Buerjin”) (FY2013: HK$63.2 million).

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the

financial year ended 31 March 2014.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND CORPORATE
DEVELOPMENT

In order to improve the financial position of the Group, the company has
successfully to place 300,000,000 new shares and to issue a promissory note
to a new independent investor recently. The Group is going to thoroughly
review current business. It aims to optimize the business structure and
operation by un-loading weak performance assets in order to increase the
productivity of the Group. In the meantime, we will enhance the financial

management by increasing the cost effective and efficiency.

PROSPECTS

It is expected that the China economy will continue to grow in a modest
rate by transforming its export orient economic growing patent to domestic
consumption driven. As the government is increasing investment in the
service industry and the disposal income of the residents are continuing
growth, the business environment of the Group will be improved. The new
management will look at the political and economic development closely
in the market place and adopt new strategies as necessary to develop new

business for the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

ER A (5)

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our utmost gratitude to
our valued clients, shareholders and business associates for their continued
support for and confidence in the Group. I also wish to express our sincere
appreciation to our management and employees for their positive efforts

over the past year.

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin

Chairman

Hong Kong: 30 June 2014

S

ANEREESG - AL EEHES -
JBE SR T 3 5 0 e S AR AR B — P S A T AR
A > 1) 4 5 B DA R0 R o A N i e R
A B R B TR 0 A 4 R S A AR A
A LK

Ev3
R

F# _F-NENA=1H

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014



FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Turnover

The Group recorded a turnover for the year ended 31 March 2014 in the
amount of HK$6.0 million (FY 2013: HK$6.6 million). Current year
turnover comprised rental income, hotel rental income and F&B revenue of
HKS$5.1 million, HK$0.8 million and HK$0.1 million respectively. For the
last financial year, rental income, hotel rental income and F&B revenue were
HK$3.5 million, HK$2.7 million and HK$0.4 million, respectively. Hotel
rental income and F&B revenue decreased significantly due to the hotel

located in Xiangfan, Hubei province was disposed in May 2013.

Staff costs

Staff costs decreased from HK$11.9 million to HK$10.4 million during the
year due to cost control measures undertaken by the management coupled
with a decrease in operating activities in line with the Group’s re-positioning

of its strategies.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses which are of recurring nature comprise mainly
office rentals, and other corporate expenses related to on-going corporate
activities. Other operating expenses have increased significantly from
HK$14.1 million last year to HK$26.7 million this year mainly due to a
reversal of a provision for bad debt of HK$4.1 million in last year, a written
off of property, plant and equipment of HK$2.8 million and more corporate

expenses incurred in this year.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased from HK$46.6 million to HK$44.7 million mainly

due to full repayment of a loan during the year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained total bank and cash balances of HK$41.3 million
as of 31 March 2014. Cash deposits have been placed with major banks in
Hong Kong and the PRC in the form of United States dollar, Hong Kong

dollar and Renminbi deposits.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)
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As of 31 March 2014, the Group had an amount due to VXL Capital
Partners Corporation Limited (“VXLCPL”) totaling HK$407.4 million due

within one year.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured on the basis of the Group’s total
interest-bearing debts net of cash reserves over the total equity (including
non-controlling interest). As of 31 March 2014, the Group was in a deficit
equity situation (Gearing ratio in FY2013: 6,952.7%). During the year,
the Group totally received HK$93.4 million from its disposal of certain

subsidiaries and debts collection.

Subsequent to the year end, the Group has received a total sum of RMB26.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$32.9 million) from the respective
buyers on completion of the disposal of “U” Inns & Hotel (Wuhan) Hotel
Management Co. Limited (“Wuhan”) and “U” Inns & Hotel (Tonghua)
Hotel Management Co. Limited (“Tonghua”).

The Company has entered into two placing agreements with ChangJiang
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited (“ChangJiang Securities”) to raise fund
of approximately HK$226.7 million. Moreover, the Company has also
entered into an agreement with VXLCPL which agreed to unconditionally
waive part of the outstanding loan balance from HK$407.4 million as at
31 March 2014 to HK$269.3 million. Based on the Group’s cash flow
projections and taking into account of the aforesaid measures, the directors
believe that the Group will have sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
and obligations as and when they fall due and to enable the Group to

continue its businesses for the foreseeable future.

BUSINESS MODEL AND CORPORATE
STRATEGY

The Group is engaged in hotel and property investment in the PRC. Our
strategies are to develop its properties into budget hotels or commercial
offices for leasing or sales, or, when appropriate, outright sales. The new
management will overall review the business of the Group and may adopt
new investment strategy as necessary to response to the ever changing
dynamic market and grasp appropriate opportunities to diversify its

investment portfolios.
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Directors’ Commentaries (Continued)

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had a total of 45 employees (FY2013:
85 employees) approximately, including Executive Directors. The
Group’s remuneration policy and packages for the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management are reviewed and
determined/recommended by the RQN Committee and approved by the
Board on an annual basis while that for other employees’ are reviewed
and approved by the Chief Executive Officer. The Group remunerates
its employees based on industry practice and the performance of each
individual. The Group also offers discretionary bonuses, medical insurance,

and defined contribution retirement plans, and provides a share option

scheme for its employees and Executive Directors.
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Profiles of Directors
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin, Chairman, Member of the EC® and Member of the
RQNC®

Aged 49, Mr. WONG was appointed as Executive Director and Chairman
of the Board on 27 May 2014. Also, Mr. Wong is a director of certain

subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. WONG joined Crown International Corporation Limited (“Crown
International”) in 2001 and is currently the executive director of Crown
International, primarily responsible for the group management and project
development. Crown Group is a conglomerate that invests in mixed-use
commercial property related businesses and aims to partner with property
developers on mixed-used commercial property projects. He obtained his
Doctorate Degree of Business Administration from University of Newcastle
in Australia, his Master Degree of Science in Hotel Administration from
Strathclyde University in United Kingdom, his Bachelor Degree of Science
in Computing from Hua Qiao University in China and his Graduate
Diploma of Business in Hospitality & Tourism Management from Footscray

Institute of Technology (now known as Victoria University) in Australia.

Mr. WONG has many years of experience in commercial banking, venture
investment, project development and risk management. He began his
financial career in 1991 when he joined Bank of China in Hong Kong as
a senior officer and engaged in corporate banking, including marketing,
corporate lending and credit analysis. In 1994, he joined Zhonghua
Investment Management Partners, a venture capital firm focusing on merger
and acquisition China market, as a senior analyst and was responsible for
due diligence, feasibility study and post investment management of the
investment projects. In 1996, he joined China Apollo Enterprises (H.K.)
Limited, a conglomerate with major businesses in manufacturing of health
drinks and cosmetic products, providing food and beverage services as well
as real estate developments as its project manager and was in charge of the

project development and reengineering management.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung, Group Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief
Financial Officer, Chairman of the EC? and Member of the RQNC®

Aged 40, Mr. LIAO was appointed as Executive Director. Group Chief
Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer on 27 May 2014. Also,

Mr. LIAO is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. LIAO joined Crown International Corporation Limited (“Crown
International”) in 2012 and is currently the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer of Crown International, primarily responsible for the
Crown Group’s business development and management, including devising
strategies and reviewing the operations. He obtained his Executive Master
Degree of Science in Finance from Baruch College, City University of New
York in U.S.A. and his Bachelor Degree of Business from the Faculty of the

Department of Finance from National Chung Cheng University in Taiwan.

Mr. LIAO has many years of experience in banking and brokerage
companies in China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. He began his financial
career in 1997 and was employed by Antay Securities Taiwan and Jih Sun
Securities Co., Ltd. respectively during the period from 1997 to 2004
in various roles, including financial consultant, regional head, branch
manager, head of finance and head of research. He then worked in several
international financial institutions, including Dryden Wealth Management
(Taiwan) Co., Ltd, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Limited and UBS AG. In these capacities, Mr. LIAO gained
experience from corporate initial public offerings, financial investments,
and merger and acquisition activities. He also served high net worth clients
and provided services, including equity investment, trust planning, asset
allocation, market analysis as well as setting up private equity funds and

family foundations.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hong Shen, Vice Chairman
Aged 55, Mr. LIU was appointed as Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014. He was also appointed as Vice Chairman on 2 July 2014.

Mr. LIU is currently the director of Ever Apex Group Limited. He obtained

his Bachelor Degree in Chinese Literature from Yunnan University in China.

R N O PR T

SHEMARAT 20132014 '

= H R ()

JBE il A5 G A > 5 T AT B AR R - 4R T B A
E-POZEFOERAHGM - ZHLREA
ZREORE

405K BRAER F-NFERH Z+LH#E
ZAL R PAT o - 4R MAT R e AR M 1t
BB o B AT R AN A T M A R 2
Ho

B R — AR O\ B BRER AR A R
AT ([REERR]) - BUE 258 BRERAT B
BB R R RA AR M %
Jo T 7 B > 355 ) A SR W B o AR 0 B e
P A5 SR R AT 240 T 37 K B A 8 e 3 A5 v S
5 5 i A ko B 5 B 5 8 9 S v IE K R B
(R R 2 e DAY

B ] W e I BRAT R AR A A
WA AR REER o BB TR — UL L AR B SR
HEmEEE A~ LWLEFEE2FZN4E
8 23 il % (R £ ¥ AR i O I H OB R
JBe 3 A P 2 ) o A A 35 B LI~ [
B AR B R TR EEEN
Z % WAL © JLAR > AT e 25 1] [ B¢ <6 il
HEHE > 00 45 DR 85 W 27 I 0 A R A ) - B i
BRER R 7 B A PR 4 ] SR (EKR) AR
O T B Fi ke SRAT o B e A R 4 S AT K R R
HERH A S8 R BB 4 T B4R DL % O
T WS35 38) 75 THD 2 R o A0 A e L
%P BB R PR 5 SRR 1 - £ e
)~ B LB T BT DA B on A B R
B R I G W AR N Z A TR -

FEHMATESF

BIALTR o2 - W %
Ssik o BN ZF-MNELAZ+EHE
ZERFEATER - WHR F—WELAH
CHERME AR L

B 56 2 BT K W 4R M AT PR A ] 2 o o RS
SHCES PN ST E L R A




10

Profiles of Directors (Continued)
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Mr. LIU has many years of experience in commerce especially in real estate
development, in both residential and commercial properties, and as an
entrepreneur. He and his business partners have invested and developed both

residential and commercial properties.

Mir. MENG Jinlong
Aged 31, Mr. MENG was appointed as Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014.

Mr. MENG joined the Crown Group in 2012 and is currently the director
of Crown International Corporation Limited. He obtained his Bachelor

Degree of Business Administration from Jing Qiao University in China.

Before joining the Crown Group, Mr. MENG was a sales director at a real
estate investment company in Beijing. He assisted in land and property
development, shopping mall leasing and management and managed selling

and leasing several real estate projects.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao, Chairman of the AC® and Member of the RQNC®

Aged 63, Mr LONG was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 May 2014.

Mr. LONG is currently the chairman of Beijing Investment Consultants Inc
and the independent directors of Beijing North Star Company Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 588), Qingling
Motors Co. Ltd, a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1122), UBS SDIC and WSW Group. Mr.
LONG is also currently an independent non-executive director of Beijing
Wangfujing Department Store (Group) Co., Led.* db R EF I EH &K (£
M) B4 A R A ], a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600859). He graduated from Research Institute
for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting. He holds a

master’s degree in economics.

Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate finance,
accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring of enterprises and listing.
He had served at Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance
and Economics, and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. He had
acted as a member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of CSRC
and a member of Chinese accounting expert panel for China-Hong Kong

Securities Team.
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Profiles of Directors (Continued)

Mr. REN Guo Hua, Chairman of the RQNC®and Member of the AC®

Aged 57, Mr. REN was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 May 2014.

Mr. REN is currently the senior advisor of Storm Harbour Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited and the general manager of Sinolink Financial Leasing Co.,
Ltd. He obtained his Bachelor Degree in English and American Literature

from East China Normal University.

Mr. REN has many years of experience in financial investment products.
He served in various global financial institutions and has many years
of experience in international banking and investment market. He was
a managing director of Greater China Origination in Storm Harbour
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited. Before that, he was a managing director
and head of capital markets of China region in Standard Chartered
Bank Hong Kong and had made valuable contributions to the Debt and
Fixed Income business for the bank. In his earlier career, he also served
in Commonwealth Bank of Australia Hong Kong, Fleet National Bank
Shanghai Representative Office, True Stand Investments Limited (Hong
Kong), Bear Stearns and Bank of China.

Mr. CHEN Fang, Member of the AC® and Member of the RQNC®

Aged 56, Mr. CHEN was appointed as Independent Non-executive Director
on 27 May 2014.

Mr. CHEN is currently the president of Beijing GZT Network Technology
Inc.. He obtained his Master Degree of Technical Economy from Harbin
Institute of Technology in China.

Mr. CHEN has many years of experience in corporate governance, enterprise
development and restructuring. He has also established a valuable network
in the business communities. He was the Dean of Institute of IT and
Social Development Research, Industrial and Commercial University of
Chongging. He had also worked as deputy general manager of Chinese
EMS Service Corporation, Deputy Director of Beijing Postal Administration
Office, Deputy Director of the Bureau of Postal Express and the Ministry of

Posts and Telecommunications.
*  For identification only

Notes:

W EC — Executive Committee of the Board

@ AC - Audit Committee of the Board

®  RQNC - Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee of the Board
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Corporate Governance Report
1 3 B IR

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s
Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this
Annual Report.

While focusing on its business development with full force, the Company
places great effort in upholding its corporate governance standards as we
believe good corporate governance is an important component in striving for

the highest returns to the Shareholders.

The Company’s principles of corporate governance emphasize on a quality
Board, sound internal controls, independence, transparence of information
and accountability to all stakeholders. Both the Board and the management
are committed to continuously improving corporate governance practices

and an ethical corporate culture as its intrinsic value.

The Group has principally complied with all the code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) throughout the year

ended 31 March 2014, with minor deviations as stated below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. All the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company (the “INEDs”),
other than Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, are appointed for a specific
term. Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, each Director
shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and subject to re-election at each Annual General
Meeting. The Board therefore considers that as each of the Director retires

in every three years, this effectively achieves the same objective as set out in

the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the
Board should attend the Annual General Meeting. However, Datuk LIM
Chee Wah, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the Annual
General Meeting held on 4 September 2013 due to overseas business

engagement.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Notes:

i. Datuk LIM Chee Wah resigned as an Executive Director and Mr. Alan Howard
SMITH, J.P resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director on 27 May
2014.

ii.  The new board of directors were appointed on 27 May 2014. Since then, the
Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes responsibility
for leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Directors make decisions objectively in the interests

of the Company.

Directors’ Continuing Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars and sent the relevant
materials to Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. In
addition to their own participation in professional training, relevant training
materials and regulatory updates were provided to the Directors by the

Company during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, all directors, namely Datuk LIM
Chee Wah, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P, Mr.
David YU Hon To and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi had received materials on new

or salient changes to laws and regulations applicable to the Group.

From the date of appointment (27 May 2014) of the new board of directors
of the Company, namely Mr. WONG Hoi Kin, Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung, Mr.
LIU Hong Shen, Mr. MENG Jinlong, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo
Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang and up to the date of this Annual Report, a
training seminar on responsibilities of directors of listed companies was
delivered by a legal adviser as to Hong Kong laws to the Directors and
senior management of the Company in May 2014. The Company will from
time to time provide briefings to all Directors to develop and refresh the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expense. Effective from
the date of their appointment, all Directors have been required to provide

the Company with their training records.
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Board Composition

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board comprised Datuk LIM Chee
Wah, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, /.2, Mr. YU Hon To
and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi. They all resigned on 27 May 2014.

Effective on 27 May 2014, the Board comprises seven directors including
two Executive Directors, namely, Mr. WONG Hoi Kin (Chairman) and Mr.
LIAO Pin Tsung (Group Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial
Officer), two Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. LIU Hong Shen (Vice
Chairman) and Mr. MENG Jinlong and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN
Fang.

The Board is committed to maintaining a balanced composition in terms of

its diversity of experience, expertise and independence.
Summary changes of the Board and Board Committee are as follow:

(1) Mr. WONG Hoi Kin was appointed as Executive Director, Chairman
of the Board and a member of each of the Executive Committee and
the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee with effect

from 27 May 2014;

(2) Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung was appointed as Executive Director, Group
Chief Executive Officer, Group Chief Financial Officer, Chairman of
the Executive Committee and a member of the Remuneration, Quality

and Nomination Committee with effect from 27 May 2014;

(3) Mr. LIU Hong Shen was appointed as Non-executive Director with
effect from 27 May 2014. He was also appointed as Vice Chairman on
2 July 2014;

(4) Mr. MENG Jinlong was appointed as Non-executive Director with
effect from 27 May 2014;

(5) Mr. LONG Tao was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee with effect from

27 May 2014;
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Mr. REN Guo Hua was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director, Chairman of the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from 27

May 2014;

Mr. CHEN Fang was appointed as Independent Non-executive
Director, and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee with effect from

27 May 2014;

Datuk LIM Chee Wah resigned from his office of Executive Director,
Chairman of the Board, and a member of each of the Executive
Committee and the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination

Committee with effect from 27 May 2014;

Mr. XIAO Huan Wei resigned from his office of Executive Director,
Group President, Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the

Executive Committee with effect from 27 May 2014;

Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P resigned from his office of Independent
Non-executive Director, Chairman of the Remuneration, Quality and
Nomination Committee and member of the Audit Committee with

effect from 27 May 2014;

Mr. David YU Hon To resigned from his office of Independent Non-
executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee with effect

from 27 May 2014; and

Mr. SOO Ying Pooi resigned from his office of Independent Non-
executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee with effect

from 27 May 2014,

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted the board diversity policy with effect from 4 September

2013 and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the

policy.

An

R B R (4)

) (EEFESRAEERER/BLIEITES
i RERRAZEG LN REGR
BERE - M _F—-NEHLH -++LtH
AR5

(7) BB B IERATE S
FHUZREGRHM ZERRAZEY
BB -H_F—NFEHLH -+ LHEE
25

(8) FEMEFERFLHTER HEGEE
URBAITREGRGM  ZERREE
BERE M _F—-NEHLH -++LtH
AR5

(9) HMBEEEREHTES  RBEMAR-
RETBAREAGTZHGER - B2
FWERLH LA RAER:

(10) 52 & i 58 2k & F 4 - B AL 28 . I |UAT
HHE-HM RERRAZEGERR
FEREEGRE -H_FWMNERH
b HEAER:

(11) A EERESE A BT B L R AT % -
ZRTEREHM REARRHZAT
BH-HZF-NERH -G HEAE
B R

(12) B HE ¥ 26 2 BHAE B Sn I AT 2 DL K
FEMEHALHMW RALRAZHRE
WE B -NERH BB
X o

HHEZIULBOR

ERGH_F -ZFANABRAESRS
Z e AL B - i O 5 A 44T BOR T T 2
Fi A Wl Gt i A




16

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
R B R ()

Directors’ Nomination and Appointment

The Company, since April 2006, has adopted the “Procedures on Directors’

Nomination, Appointment and Re-appointment” for setting out the
pp PP g

procedures, processes and criteria to select and recommend candidates for

directorship.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is empowered to appoint a
director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Shareholders
(being two or more Shareholders holding not less than ten per cent. of the
entire issued share capital of the Company) are empowered to nominate
candidates for directorship and subject to Shareholders” approval at general
meeting. RQN Committee can also nominate candidates for directorship for
appointment by the Board. Any director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next AGM and be eligible for re-election.

The basis of determining the emoluments of directors are based on the
duties and responsibilities of the individual director at the Company with

reference to prevailing market conditions.

The Company has been providing comprehensive induction to newly
appointed directors to ensure that they have a proper understanding of
the operations and business of the Company and that they are fully aware
of their responsibilities under the relevant statutes and common laws,
the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory

requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company.

The Company has purchased Directors’ & Officers’ Liability insurance for

all Directors.

Board Practices

The Board holds meetings regularly at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals to discuss business development as well as
the overall strategy of the Company. All directors are given an opportunity
to include matters in the meeting agenda. Formal notice of at least 14 days
is given for a regular Board meeting. Reasonable notice will be given for
all other Board meetings. Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and
available for inspection by Directors. Directors have full and unrestricted
access to relevant information in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make
an informed decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities. The
Board has adopted procedures to enable the Directors to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense,
to assist them to perform their duties, as provided in the Company’s

“Guideline on Independent Professional Advice”.
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The Board held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2014 and its HERERKE_F-NFE=A=1+—HIk

attendance record is set out below:— AR JENERAT T YK R o R AL SRR A

T

Eligible No. of Attendance Rate
Directors to Attend Attendance (%)
#HH R R i K B i 3 (%)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah FE M BEE 4 2 50
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H M fi o 4 4 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P S A e 2k KA1 4 4 100
Mr. David YU Hon To T S 4 4 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi o MR il 4 A 4 4 100
Note: All of the above directors resigned on 27 May 2014. Fiak: Rt efEROR N4 EH -+t

H BT

A board meeting was held on 30 June 2014 to approve the Company’s AANFRZFE-NENAZTH Y BT

audited consolidated results for the year ended 31 March 2014 at the REFFEH  URAAFREGEZEGZMH

recommendation of the audit committee of the Company. BEH A ARBRE-F-WE=EA
=t HIRF R BER A AL

An Annual General Meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2014 REREZ-NE=HA=+—HI1LEEH

and its attendance record is set out below: 137 — B AOB AR K - JE i 40 8% 51

T

Eligible No. of Attendance Rate
Directors to Attend Attendance (%)
R HEEMEXY HE K % & (%)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah BB 1 0 0
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei F M e A 1 1 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P o R A e 2k K A 1 1 100
Mr. David YU Hon To AT S 1 1 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi o JRE T e A 1 1 100
Note: All of the above directors resigned on 27 May 2014. Miak: Rak2EFCOR _F—NEHLA Tt

H B E -
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Independence

The Company believes that independence brings unbiased judgment
and conscience in decision making. The Board currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors possesses accounting expertise as required under Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The Board received from each Independent
Non-executive Director a written confirmation of their independence and

has satisfied their independence as required by the Listing Rules.

All the then and current Independent Non-executive Directors were/are
appointed for a specific term, other than the Former Director Mr. Alan
Howard SMITH, J.P, who resigned on 27 May 2014 and did not have a
fixed term of appointment, but was subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the AGM. According to Article 133 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, one-third of the Directors who served longest on the Board
since they were last elected, shall retire but shall be eligible for re-election
at the AGM. Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, every
Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years. The Board
will ensure that each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every

three years in order to comply with the code provisions of the CG Code.

According to Article 110 of the Articles of Association, a Director appointed
to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board is subject to re-election
by shareholders at the first AGM after his appointment. However, this

requirement is subject to the provision of the Listing Rules.

Relationship

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship with each other.

Chairman and CEO

The responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO have been clearly defined
in the Company’s “Guideline on Division of Roles of Chairman and Chief

Executive Officer”.

As at 31 March 2014, Datuk LIM Chee Wah (“Datuk LIM”) was the Chairman
of the Board and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (“Mr. XIAO”) was the Group Chief
Executive Officer (the “Group CEQ”) of the Company. Datuk LIM provides
leadership for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and that
all key and appropriate issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. XIAO,
the Group CEO, who takes the lead in the Group’s operation and business

development.
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On 27 May 2014, Datuk LIM and Mr. XIAO resigned as the Chairman and
the Group CEO of the Company.

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin (“Mr. WONG”) was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung (“Mr. LIAO”) was appointed as the Group
Chief Executive Officer (the “Group CEO”) of the Company with effect from
27 May 2014. Mr. WONG, the Chairman of the Board provides leadership
for the Board and ensures that the Board works effectively and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. LIAO, the Group CEO,

who takes the lead in the Group’s operation and business development.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the current Non-executive Director (including Independent Non-
executive Director) has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of office is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-clection in accordance with the Articles of Association of
the Company and Code on Corporate Governance Practices of the Listing

Rules.

Matters Reserved for the Board

The Company’s “Guideline on Division of the Roles of the Board and
the Management” has set out clearly the roles of the Board and the

management.

Matters reserved for the Board include long term objectives and commercial
strategies, corporate and capital structures, financial reporting and controls,
internal controls, material contracts, communications, board memberships,
remuneration, delegation of authority, corporate governance matters and

policy setting.

Board Committees

The Board has established various committees including the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee and the RQN Committee of the
Company and delegated authority to them for overseeing certain aspects of
the Company's affairs. There are clear written terms of reference for Board
Committees. Reports of committee meetings are presented to the Board

regularly.
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Executive Committee

On 27 May 2014, Mr. XIAO Huan Wei resigned as Chairman of the
Executive Committee and Datuk LIM Chee Wah resigned as member of the

Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee comprises all the Executive Directors. The
Executive Committee is currently chaired by Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung, and the
other member is Mr. WONG Hoi Kin.

The Executive Committee is delegated to be responsible for the day-to-
day management, administration and operation of the Company and its
principal duties are clearly set out in its terms of reference. The delegated

functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.

Audit Committee

On 27 May 2014, Mr. David YU Hon To resigned as Chairman of the Audit
Committee and Mr. Alan Howard SMITH /.2 and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

resigned as members of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who possess appropriate banking, commercial
and financial experience and skills to undertake the review of financial
statements in accordance with good practice of financial reporting. The
Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. LONG Tao and the other two
members are Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN Fang.

The Audit Committee’s main duties, among others, are as follows:

(1) to recommend to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the External Auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the External Auditor, and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(2) to develop and implement policy on engaging External Auditor for

provision of non-audit services;

(3) to monitor the integrity of financial statements and to review the
annual report, interim report and financial statements with exercise of

professional judgment before submission to the Board; and

(4) to review financial control, internal control and risk management

systems.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2014 and its attendance record is set out below:

R B R (4)

FERRAOARRE_Z-NE=A=Z1+—H
AR B 9 BT T R - L R D BRI
e

Eligible to No. of Attendance Rate
Directors Attend Attendance (%)
HH MR R i a/e 4 % 3R (%)
Mr. David YU Hon To e 100
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P o A e 2k A F AL 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi i JRE i g A 100

Note: All of the above directors resigned on 27 May 2014.

The main work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended
31 March 2014 included the review of External Auditor’s audit plan and
interim, annual financial statements and results announcements as well
as audit reports. It has also reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
internal control system, approved the internal audit report and reviewed and

recommended the appointment and re-appointment of External Auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s audited consolidated
results for the year ended 31 March 2014, including the accounting
principles and practice adopted by the Group and recommended
to the Board for consideration the same and the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), Certified Public Accountants as the
Company’s independent auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on 17 September 2014 at its
meeting held on 30 June 2014.

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination (“RQN”)
Committee

On 27 May 2014, Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. resigned as Chairman of
the RQN Committee and Datuk LIM Chee Wah, Mr. David YU Hon To
and Mr. SOO Ying Pooi resigned as members of the RQN Committee.

The RQN Committee comprises all the Independent Non-executive
Directors and all the Executive Directors. The Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. REN Guo Hua and the other four members are Mr. WONG
Hoi Kin, Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung, Mr. LONG Tao and Mr. CHEN Fang.
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The RQN Committee has adopted clear terms of reference and its principal
duties are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and to draw up
procedures for formulating an incentive-based remuneration policy.
The RQN Committee is authorized by the Board to determine, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on remuneration of Non-executive Directors. No Director or any of his

associate will be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The RQN Committee is also responsible for reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and make recommendations to the Board on the

appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

The RQN Committee held one meeting during the year ended 31 March

2014 and its attendance record is set out below:
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Eligible No. of Attendance Rate
Directors to Attend Attendance (%)
HE HE R KB iR B 1% 2 (%)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P o A 58 A A F AL 1 1 100
Datuk LIM Chee Wah EE kB 1 1 100
Mr. David YU Hon To B B S A 1 1 100
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi o i 2 A 1 1 100

Note: All of the above directors resigned on 27 May 2014.

The main work performed by the RQN Committee during the year ended
31 March 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report included the
recommendation and approval of the directors’ fees of Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
and reviewed and approved the year 2014/15 remuneration package of
Executive Directors of the Company. It has also reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, recommended the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors and assessed the independence of Independent

Non-executive Directors.
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The RQN committee reviewed and recommended to the Board certain
remuneration-related matters of the Directors and senior management as
well as the re-election of all the retiring Directors at the forthcoming AGM

at its meeting held on 30 June 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility to maintain a good
standard of corporate governance practices and business ethics within the

Group. Under the terms of reference of the corporate governance function.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties

including:

(1) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporatf: governance;

(2) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of the directors and senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance

manual (if any) applicable to employees and the directors; and

(5) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report as required

under the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Board has adopted its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiries by the Company with all Directors, they have
comfirmed compliance with the Securities Code in their securities

transactions during the year ended 31 March 2014.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

On 6 March 2014, Datuk Lim Chee Wah (“Datuk Lim”) disposed his entire
deemed interests of 1,069,308,000 ™9 shares held by VXL Capital Partners
Corporation Limited (“VXLCPL”) (a company wholly and beneficially

owned by Datuk Lim) to Crown Landmark Corporation.

Note: The interests in 1,069,308,000 shares comprises 769,308,000 shares and
300,000,000 shares which are beneficially owned by VXLCPL and Huge
More Limited (“Huge More”) respectively. Huge More has been a wholly-
owned subsidiary of VXLCPL since 7 May 2010. Datuk Lim is also a director
and the beneficial owner of VXLCPL.

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or the Chief Executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained
by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in

the Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report, the

interests or short positions of every person, other than the Directors and

chief executives of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders
Ji& K 4 1

Crown International Fund Corporation

(“Crown International”)

Oasis Universal Group Limited
(“Oasis Universal”)

Hung Man (formerly known as Xiong
Shu Min) (“Ms. Hung”)

B (3 A Xiong Shu Min )
(Me&41)

Notes:

Nature of Interests
BE 25 1 H

Interests in Shares

— Beneficial Interests

T A 2 M 2 — T A A

Interests in Shares

— Controlled Corporation

A Z S — 24

Interests in Shares

— Controlled Corporation

T Py Z 2R — S2 45

Note

Fit &

1&2

1&2

1&2

1. 1,069,308,000 Shares were beneficially owned by Crown International which is

100% owned by Oasis Universal. Oasis Universal is solely owned by Ms. Hung.

Therefore, Oasis Universal and Ms. Hung are deemed or taken to be interested

in all the Shares beneficially owned by Crown International by virtue of the

SFO.

2. All the interests disclosed above represent long position in the shares and

underlying share.

GRS
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Ordinary shares/ Approx.% of
underlying shares issued shares
HaEmg, MHosfakiz

il L gy 1E £ 1 43 BE (%)
1,069,308,000 69.91%
1,069,308,000 69.91%
1,069,308,000 69.91%
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EXTERNAL INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2014 were audited by PwC whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming AGM. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board
that PwC be nominated for re-appointment as the External Independent

Auditor of the Company at the forthcoming AGM.

PwC provides an annual audit assurance on the Company’s financial
statements. It is the responsibility of the External Independent Auditor to
form an independent opinion, based on its audit, on the financial statements
and to report its opinion solely to the sharcholders, as a body, in accordance
with Section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Companies Ordinance. The Audit
Committee is obliged to ensure continuing External Independent Auditor’s

objectivity and safeguard independence.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, audit fee and non-audit fee amounted to
approximately HK$900,000 and HK$605,000 respectively.

DIRECTOR’S AND INDEPENDENT
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for the preparation
of the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014, which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014. In preparing these audited
consolidated financial statements, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and made judgments under circumstances and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable; and have prepared the audited
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors
are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with

reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group.

PwC, the External Independent Auditor of the Company, has presented its
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report as set out on pages 38 to
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board of the Company, has overall responsibility for internal controls
and reviewing its effectiveness. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure
that assets are adequately protected against unauthorized use or disposal
and that the interests of shareholders are safeguarded. The systems in place
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board maintains an organizational structure with clearly defined levels
of responsibility and authority and appropriate reporting procedures. The
Board meets regularly and has a schedule of matters that are brought to it for
decision in order that effective control over strategic, financial, operational

and compliance issues can be maintained.

To enable the Company to discharge its annual review responsibilities
pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has
reviewed the need for an internal audit function since April 2006 and
considered it appropriate to continue with the practice of outsourcing the
internal audit functions. Accordingly, the Company has engaged an external
accounting firm as Internal Auditors to provide internal audit services to the

Group on an annual basis.
The Internal Auditors have conducted evaluation and tests in connection
with the following management’s assertions for the year ended 31 March

2014:

(1) the system of internal control of the Group including financial

reporting, operational and compliance controls is effective;
(2) the risk management process of the Group is effective; and

(3) effective internal controls are maintained to safeguard the Group’s

assets.
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The Internal Auditors also formulate the annual internal audit plan and
procedures, conduct periodic independent reviews on the operations of each
division to identify any irregularities and risks, develop action plans and
make recommendations to address the identified risks, and report to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal audit
process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material

issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code, the Directors keep reviewing the internal control system of the
Group and further improve the system with respect to financial control,
operational control, compliance control and risk management on top of the
comprehensive review of the internal control system conducted under the
guidance of the Board. In addition, this review also considers the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function.

The Company will continue where necessary to improve its internal control

system and strengthen its risk management capability.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LIM Yi Ping was appointed as company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) on 29 April 2011. She resigned as the Company
Secretary with effect from 13 November 2013 and Mr. Kwok Siu Man (“Mr.

KWOK?”) was appointed to the position with effect from the same date.

Mr. KWOK was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited
(“BCS”) to assume such office and BCS has been providing certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered
into between the Company and BCS. The primary person at the Company
with whom Mr. KWOK has been contacting in respect of company
secretarial matters is Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung (the Group Chief Executive
Officer and the Group Chief Financial Officer).

As Mr. KWOK was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been
acting in such capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed
on the Stock Exchange at substantial times since then, he was not required
to have at least 15 hours of relevant continuous professional development

training in the year ended 31 March 2014 under the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR Ji% SR RE ] B % & & B 1R
RELATIONS

The general meetings shall be convened by the Directors on the requisition WIFFWEHEAE Z+ ZEHE A 756
of Shareholders pursuant to section 566 of the Hong Kong Companies SEILE N TSR > T JE I B R SR B i
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong). WK o

The Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has iy A 22 ] e A0 B R B SR B B SR K o M RE
received requests to do so from Shareholders representing at least 5% of FOR Z B RER B R B2
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at 2B B R 2 A8 4% SR B A 5% - HII A B
general meetings. A request must state the general nature of the business BEOR K - RERLEAFT YR LRI
to be dealt with at the meeting, and may include the text of a resolution — B W BN E LR IER B
that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. ok Stk Bl ke < Ve 5% 4 S o TSR] Hh U
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A request may be L2 24 SC A ALK © SR W] DA B sk 1B
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must be R TAA A - b8 3 Ao

authenticated by the person or persons making it.

For putting forward proposals at any general meeting or enquiries to the RRAER KR LR B EEFRE
Board, he/she shall do so in written to the Company Secretary of the A > B R RS DA E T ) A A W] 2 4 R B AR
Company. The letter shall state clearly the identity of the sharcholder, the H o BRI 2B RE 5 W JBE R B Ay~ R~ B
number of shareholding, correspondence address and telephone number, and Mo hE ~ TR R DA B R R R A o KA
the related suggestions and enquiries. The Company shall, in a reasonable a5 DA B B T AT O 2O BT At g R RE
and practicable manner, pass the said matter to the Board and respond g 3 A LA ] R o

according to the situation.

In addition, the Company may receive letters or phone enquiries from BB AN > A Sy H] W] RE A IR 4 B R DA R 5 R
Sharcholders from time to time, the Company shall, in a reasonable and w2 A - T AR 2 )N DA A B B B T
practicable manner, respond as quickly as possible. For matters concerning A7 75 Al e ] o FR A B AR A ) R4 B A
the Company’s shares and basic information of announcements, enquiries ik ARG R 2 Fm > RIS AT 82

shall be put forward to the below address. DL sk o

Contacts of the Company are as follows: A H) Z B AR

Suite 901, 9th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, B WA 18 TP BRI B o901 %
Hong Kong Tl ¢ (852) 3168 2588

Tel: (852) 3168 2588 - (852) 3168 2599

Fax: (852) 3168 2599 A RER R =R (AR BB
Office Hours: 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Ah)

Monday to Friday (except public holidays) A JUREIE 2R AN R IE
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The rights of sharcholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meetings are contained in the Articles of Association.
Details of such rights to demand a poll procedure are included in all relevant
circulars to shareholders and will be explained during the proceedings of

meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange

and the Company following each general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. Mr. XIAO Huan Wei, the former
Group Chief Executive Officer, attended the 2013 annual general meeting.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee, the RQN Committee and the
independent Board Committee (where applicable), or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to answer questions at

the shareholders’ meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationship with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and

timely manner.

Currently, investors can assess the Company’s information through
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company (htep://www.

vxlcapital.com).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to and within the knowledge
of the Directors, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of

this Annual Report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the Company has posted its
Articles of Association on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date
of this Annual Report, no amendments were made to the constitutional

documents of the Company.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
provision of management services to subsidiaries. The principal activities
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 19 to the

consolidated financial statements.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 6 March 2014, Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC”) successfully
completed the acquisitions from VXL Capital Partners Corporation
Limited (the former controlling shareholder of the Company) and Huge
More Limited their entire equity interest of approximately 69.91% of the
total issued shares of the Company. CLC has since become the controlling

shareholder and assumed management control of the Group.

CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE

The registered office of the Company has been changed to Suite 901, 9th
Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect
from 17 June 2014.

PROPOSED CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The Board proposed to change the name of the Company from “VXL
Capital Limited .84 4 A F]” to “Crown International Corporation
Limited 558 532 3R 4 A R A 7]” which is subjected to the approval by the
Sharcholders at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company will be

held on 15 July 2014 and by the Registrar of Companies of Hong Kong.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis by operating segments of the Group’s performance, assets and
liabilities for the year is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 40.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer was approximately 31.3% of the Group’s total turnover
and the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

accounted for approximately 100% of the Group’s total turnover.

The purchase attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 24.16% of the Group’s total purchases and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for

approximately 63.16% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their Associates or any Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or

suppliers noted above.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DONATIONS

The Group made no charitable donation during the year (year ended 31
March 2013: NIL).

EH

ARG PR AR AR B 2 SR AR SR 40 L Z AR &
T Wi 2 5%

ERE P KA

BECZ-WE=A=1+—HIL4EE K4
P f5 K% T Al 88 SE A A 45 I 4 7 S
#131.3% > M AL E H KK P Pidh 2 58 %
FRAN A 45 18 4 ZE R A100% o

7 45 [E) 1i 5 K Bt HE 7 R W 2 R R AN AR 4B
[ 4 PR I B A024.16% > 1 A 48 [ 1) 71K gt
VE T % W 2 SRR G R AN AN 45 ) R R A
63.16% ©

E RS A L YN ARLE S R
A W) BB AT B AR5 % DA b 2 T R S R
SOl 2 A 48 [ K % P sl A3t HE 7 o B AT
o i 2 o

B 18,
4 R R B A JE I -

Y3k - W45 Bk e
RS W A 4 ) 2 3 R
R 4 T 9 i s

1 5K

AR A A I S A R (R
FoEZFEZHEHIREE ) o

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014



Report of the Directors (Continued)

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Company will allot and issue 300.000.000 new ordinary shares at the
placing price of HK$0.36 per placing share to a placee pursuant to a placing
agreement entered into between the Company and an independent placing
agent dated 19 June 2014. These new ordinary shares were issued under the
general mandate granted to the directors pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 September
2013. The new shares rank equally among themselves and with the existing

shares in all respects. The said allotment is expected to be completed no later

than 2 July 2014.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 44

and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 March 2014, calculated
under sections 290 to 291 of the Companies Ordinance, amounted to NIL

(31 March 2013: NIL).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 132.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its shares listed on the Stock Exchange

nor did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such

shares during the year.
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DIRECTORS wE
The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2014 and up to the date of REE R -WE=ZH=Z+—HILEERSE
this Annual Report were: AEHR AL FEE
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Mr. WONG Hoi Kin i B AR

(appointed on 27 May 2014) (R_Z—NELA -+ LHERE)
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung B AR e A

(appointed on 27 May 2014) (R_F—NELA -+ LHEZRE)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah XY N E

(resigned on 27 May 2014) (R=F—WMFAH =+ L HEME)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H M e A

(resigned on 27 May 2014)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Hong Shen
(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. MENG Jinlong
(appointed on 27 May 2014)

(R =F—MN4ETHA =+ L HEME)

FHHTHER:

B AT YR S
(RZZ—WEE A =+ L HERE)

i 4 W S
(RZZ—WEE A =+ L HERE)

Independent Non-executive Directors: BorJEPUAT E S
Mr. LONG Tao R AEAE

(appointed on 27 May 2014) (R_F—W4EALH T+ L HERE)
Mr. REN Guo Hua A 28] = 5 A

(appointed on 27 May 2014) (R_F—W4EALH T+ L HERE)
Mr. CHEN Fang BT S A

(appointed on 27 May 2014) (R_F—W4EALH T+ L HERE)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.2 i S A A A L

(resigned on 27 May 2014) (RZF—W4ELH L HEME)
Mr. David YU Hon To i B BE S A

(resigned on 27 May 2014) (RZT—W4ELA L HEME)
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi R il e A

(resigned on 27 May 2014)

(R =Z—M4EA =+ L HEME)

In accordance with the Article 110 of the Company’s Articles of Association, R 45 AR o ) AL % B 75 A B SR 110 - i B

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin, Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung, Mr. LIU Hong Shen, Mr. S BERGEE BAE L - ReTE s

MENG Jinlong, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. REN Guo Hua and Mr. CHEN A~ R e 2k A B O A R R S A R

Fang, who were appointed as Directors on 27 May 2014, will retire at the RP4ERLHA L HEREAESE  FR

forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election. JRE it JBe RO 4R K| HARAE - W AT A & #% LB
B AL o

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014



Report of the Directors (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 8 to 11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in Note 14 to

the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2014 and up to the date of this Annual Report, none of the
Directors nor his Associates was interested in any business which competes
or is likely to compete, cither directly or indirectly, with the business of the

Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
AND MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as the transactions disclosed in “Related Party Transactions” as set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly subsisted at end of the year or at any

time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Details of Directors’ and Chief Executive’s interests in securities are set out
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Securities” in

the Corporate Governance Report of this Annual Report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

Details of Substantial Shareholders’ interests in securities are set out in the
section “Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 4 July 2013, the Company, “U” Inns and Hotels Investment Limited
(“UIHK”) and Fortune Sea Group Limited (“FSG”), entered into the Asset
Swap Agreement pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to
acquire, and FSG conditionally agreed to dispose of, the UIHHL shares.
The consideration payable for the UIHHL shares will be satisfied by way
of transfer of the Xi'an shares from UIHK to FSG. The relevant circular
was despatched to the Shareholders on 13 August 2013. Please refer to the

circular for detailed information.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 12 to 30 in the Corporate

Governance Report of this Annual Report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events after the reporting period are provided in Note

32 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CHANGE IN INDEPENDENT AUDITORS IN
THE PRECEDING THREE YEARS

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”) was appointed as the
Independent Auditor of the Group with effect from 5 March 2012 to fill the

casual vacancy following the resignation of PwC.

On 26 February 2013, Pan-China resigned as the Independent Auditor of
the Group. PwC was appointed as the Independent Auditor of the Group
with effect from 28 February 2013 to fill the casual vacancy following the

resignation of Pan-China.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EREREHRA (5)

AUDITOR 173 i1

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year BEBKECEGAEIRE R NE=
ended 31 March 2014 have been audited by PwC. PwC will retire and, AZ1t—RIEEEZ REGLG M RE-
being eligible, will offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. B T R T A S E i e R B AR R e IR AT

S A R LB R A o
On behalf of the Board REEFE
WONG Hoi Kin E
Chairman g B

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014 B E-NEANH=Z1H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VXL CAPITAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of VXL Capital
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 40 to 129, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 80 of Schedule 11 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

f A AR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2014 2013
ZE-mgE SR =4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 T T
Turnover wEH 5 5,981 6,627
Other gains A 2 ) 6 38,441 1,619
Revaluation gain on investment properties ) L AL B 17 - 4,085
Staff costs Z=95%:N 7 (10,382) (11,860)
Depreciation and amortization R Y& X (2,423) (7,548)
Other operating expenses, net oAt 28 7% B 7 40 (26,711) (14,100)
Operating profit/(loss) wmEwA o (EHE) 8 4,906 (21,177)
Finance income WA 9 364 458
Finance costs L2 g WN 10 (44,729) (46,636)
Loss before taxation I i iy e 2 (39,459) (67,355)
Taxation charge BLIE % M 11 (1,292) (5,172)
Loss for the year N g H (40,751) (72,527)
Other comprehensive income: Fo A 2 WA
Currency translation differences AW A S R (4,085) 809
Property revaluation gain Wy S Al - 6,968
Other comprehensive income for the year, A P At 2 G W
net of tax B30 B A IE (4,085) 7,777
Total comprehensive loss for the year A N 4 TH i 1B 48 AR (44,836) (64,750)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to: VLR 405 e A 4
(B#H) HwF
Owner of the Company KAEHEA A (45,288) (70,799)
Non-controlling interest I 5 e i 2% 4,537 (1,728)
(40,751) (72,527)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year DL 45 77 FEAG 4F- 18 4 1
attributable to: (E18) W A %
Owner of the Company AN E AR N (48,315) (63,231)
Non-controlling interest I ¥ I RE 25 3,479 (1,519)
(44,836) (64,750)
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share Aoy wRE 25 R N AL AR N
for loss for the year attributable to e 48 =2 1 IR % 4 B AR
equity holders of the Company W 13 HK(2.96) centsi#ifll  HK(4.63) cencsitifl

The notes on pages 47 to 129 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A B IR DL

As ar 31 March 2014 R —=F—MWE=H =+—H

2014 2013
SR R =4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B T T
Non-current assets E /2 g3
Property, plant and equipment LE SN T Y & ] 15(a) 93,040 203,842
Land use rights & 5 B 16 5,345 51,322
Investment properties i LVES 17 98,348 128,405
Construction in progress T 18 174 6,367
Available-for-sale financial assets ] At B R A 20 1,128 1,128
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WALk T ~ LA R X 4 21 - 7,243
198,035 398,307
Current assets i B B
Assets held for sale FHlEHEEE 22 250,931 87,901
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE WLk T ~ TELAN sk T B 4 21 10,955 4,411
Bank balances and cash SRAT A iR B4 23 41,277 90,806
303,163 183,118
Current liabilities i B £
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % M i TEL H 24 69,149 107,347
Liabilities classified as held for sale SERREHEZ A 22 51,199 749
Borrowings fi sk 25 407,429 448,383
527,777 556,479
Net current liabilities i Bh £ £ i A (224,614) (373,361)
Total assets less current liabilities H8E A DR B AL (26,579) 24,946
Non-current liabilities I Wi Bh £ 1%
Deferred income tax liabilities B IE T A5 B 1A 26 13,114 19,803
13,114 19,803
Net (liabilities)/assets (ffE) & 5w (39,693) 5,143

AR AR

&




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

AR B AR DL ()

Asat 31 March 2014 }#* —~F—WE=H=—+—H

2014 2013
ZEF g ZF-=4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt 5k T T#T

EQUITY HE %
Share capital JBe A% 27 167,345 15,296
Share premium JBe 4y ¥ 154 28(a) - 152,049
Share capital and other statutory capital reserves MBEAS K JAth 32 & & S fis 167,345 167,345
Other reserves At 5 A5 28(a) (298,892) (250,577)
Total shareholders’ deficit B B e b 48 E (131,547) (83,232)
Non-controlling interest Ik e I 2 91,854 88,375
Total equity HE i 48 78 (39,693) 5,143

Approved by the Board on 30 June 2014 and signed on behalf of the Board
by:

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin
g R SE A
Director

#HF

The notes on pages 47 to 129 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

MREF-NEAA=ZTHEEFGER I

HUTHEFREERTHE:

Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung
B A3 e AR

Director

HF

SE47H R 5129 Z Wb ik g AR 55 6 0 Bk

Z—#4ro
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Statement of Financial Position

S 5 IR D A

As at 31 March 2014 }# —E—PE=H=—+—H

2014 2013
SR R =4
Note HK$’°000 HK$’000
fif it il Tt
Non-current assets I i B B e
Property, plant and equipment LE SN T Y & ] 15(b) - -
Interests in subsidiaries Bt J&§ 2 = HE 25 19 330,000 330,000
330,000 330,000
Current assets i B B
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE Wk T ~ B AR M ¥ A 21 200 202
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WS o I 2 ) R TE 19 38,102 56,794
Bank balances and cash SRAT A B R Bl 4 23 256 148
38,558 57,144
Current liabilities i B £
Payables and accruals WA 3k JE % HE 51 IE H 24 1,626 1,815
Borrowings £t 3K 25 407,429 448,383
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE A B g 2 ) Ak JE 19 114,853 23,904
523,908 474,102
Net current liabilities i B A0 (485,350) (416,958)
Total assets less current liabilities HEE R WU B B 1R (155,350) (86,958)
Net liabilities =Rt ¥ (155,350) (86,958)
EQUITY HE 4
Share capital Je A 27 167,345 15,296
Share premium T 3 ¥ 1 28(b) - 152,049
Share capital and other statutory capital reserves Bt AR K& Al 1 & & A< fif 5 167,345 167,345
Other Reserves FE Al % 28(b) (322,695) (254,303)
Total equity HE £ 48 70 (155,350) (86,958)

Approved by the Board on 30 June 2014 and signed on behalf of the Board

by:

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin

i B A
Director

#HF

The notes on pages 47 to 129 form part

statements.

of these consolidated financial

~

S RAT

MU TERREERTHE

Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung
JBE i i S A

Director

#HF
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Z—HB4 e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

LYl TN 1
Employee
share-based Non-
Share Share Capital  compensation Exchange Revaluation  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interest  Total equity
R B2
A i i ARG WA 52 B T ff B Rit b aH FEkER AR
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T T T Ti#x % T T T T#% T

At 31 March 2012 REZ-ZEZR=Z4-0 15,296 152,049 - 2587 50328 12,025 (285,756) (53471) 123,364 69,893
Loss for the year FRER = = = = = = (70,799) (70,799) (1,728) (72,527)
Other comprehensive income: H2ERA
Translation exchange difference SR = - - - 600 - - 600 209 809
Deferred tax on revaluation increase BHESI B BRI = = = = = (6,050) 2 (6,050) - (6,050)
Property revaluation WEEL - - - - - 13,018 - 13,018 - 13,018
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERRHERAH - - - - 600 6,968 (70,799) (63,231) (1,519) (64,750)
15,296 152,049 - 2,587 50,928 18,993 (356,555) (116,702) 121,845 5,143
Conversion of preferred shares B ) b e
by a subsidiary (Note 25) (H#E25) - - 51,671 - (13,28) (4919) - 33470 (33,470) -
Transfer to accumulated losses upon T O 5
lapse of share options RitE# = = = (2,587) - - 2,587 - - -
Total transactions with owners BEAAETZRAEH - - 51,671 (2,587) (13,282) (4,919) 2,587 33,470 (33,470) -
Ac31 March 2013 REZF-ZEZAZ1~H 15,296 152,049 51,671 - 37,646 14,074 (353,968) (83,232) 88,375 5,143
(Loss)/Profit for the year £ (ER) /A - = = = (45,288) (45,288) 4,537 (40,751)
Other comprehensive income: Hb 2R
Translation exchange difference SRR - - 2,083 - - 2,083 728 2,811
Realisation of exchange gain upon BB Rk AN
disposal and deregistration of BB AR ZELRR
foreign subsidiaries - - (5,110) - - (5,110) (1,786) (6,896)
Total comprehensive loss for the year g 2t - - (3,027) - (45,288) (48,315) 3,479 (44,836)
Transition to no-par value regime REF-MEZAZ AR
on 3 March 2014 (Note 27) MR (Wik27) 152,049 (152,049) - - - - - -
At31 March 2014 REF-WEZHZ+—H 167,345 - 34,619 14,074 (399,256) (131,547) 91,854 (39,693)

The notes on pages 47 to 129 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

maBlaeii ik

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F—4# = =+—H IL )&

2014 2013
“EF Mg DR =8
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i i T# 7t T#t
Operating activities KW
Loss before taxation Wi Bt iy M 45 (39,459) (67,355)
Adjustments for: i B
Finance costs il B R 10 44,729 46,636
Depreciation and amortization 18 S o 8 2,423 7,548
Loss on disposal of property, e SRR
plant and equipment i 15 2,764 -
Exchange gain on disposal of subsidiaries 8 i 2 W] 2 T S 2 A (6,896) —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H 8 B 2\l 2 2R 6 (28,530) =
Reversal of provision for receivable i B R ik T AR 8 - (4,100)
Written back of other payable 85 o At B A 5K T 6 (1,814) (1,427)
Fair value gain on investment properties BB EZ N FHER 17 - (4,085)
Changes in working capital BHEE S
Change in receivables, A Wk T~ LA R B
prepayments and deposits A5 ) (12,642) 20,799
Change in payables and accruals JRE Ak 7k T T M 3
5 13,916 (12,875)
Net cash outflow used in operations BEEHEHEH B TR (25,509) (14,859)
Income tax paid e B A Bt (1,292) )

Net cash outflow used in operating activities £ 0 B 2 Bl AR (26,801) (14,866)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

maBlaiiak ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2014 2013
ZE-mgE DR =4
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B i il Tl
Investing activities # & B
Purchase of property, plant and W\ 3K ~ B A B s A
equipment and land use rights VA B - i 5 i R (1,933) (8,952)
Additions of construction in progress R - - (1,899)
Deposits received for disposal of O 8 Fi )& A W)
equity interest in subsidiaries W Z ¥4 63,555 56,782
Net cash inflow generated from REFHZHERAFH
investing activities 6 1 :Q%% _______ 4_ 5_,?3_ 1
Financing activities il & I B
Repayment of loan 5 B K (60,849) (35,470)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid G 75 Tl L L 4 AR 2 43 - (601)
Interest paid [EYER DS (24,422) (3,385)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest I I 1 B 2% S A B - (26,100)
Net cash outflow used in financing activities MEnHHeRbEE (78757,277717)7_ - £6_5_,5_5_6_) B
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 I Bl 4 Y A (50,450) (34,491)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April PHA—HZ B8R
Bl &S EY 90,806 125,059
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ifE 2 58 ) 2 5% % 921 238
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March RE=HA=+—HZ
Bl& BBl ESHEY 23 41,277 90,806

The notes on pages 47 to 129 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

SR47H 129 Z Mk i A AR A 8 ok
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1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 3 0 5 e o Bk

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

GENERAL INFORMATION
The principal activities of VXL Capital Limited (the “Company”) and

its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are (i) hotel investment and
operations and (ii) property investment, whilst those of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suite 901, 9th Floor
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Directors consider the immediate and ultimate holding
company to be Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC”), incorporated

in the Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below and have been

consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
property and available-for-sale financial assets. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar thousands, unless

otherwise stated.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$224.6 million and a shareholders’ deficit of HK$131.5
million. In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2014, the
Group reported a loss of HK$40.8 million and a net operating
cash outflow of HK$25.5 million. Included in current liabilities,
there was a loan payable to VXL Capital Partners Corporation
Limited (“VXLCPL”), the former ultimate holding company
amounting to HK$407,429,146, which is repayable on 1 October
2014. The above conditions indicate the existence of uncertainties
which may cast doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated

financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

1.

— B & B

R A R A R (TAC 2] 1) R 3 Fi
J&§ AR (B (A ) 2 FEEH R
()T 15 45 M B 4 > L S i) S %
oM A R 2 BB TIRR AR
U 5 e B k19

AN T B T e R S 2 A R A T -
LG TR0 2 M ik s A Y Y A U 0 18
SRR 590015 o

AAFRA W GRZARAR L
T o B2 7 B B A Bk MR or 2 2
EEMEEMARAR ([REE]) %
FBE R BN ] o

FEEFEEOR

BRBAKS £ B A DT RN 2
BRI > ELBR I 53 450 - 75
545 52 B4 JE T 4R 5 B

2.1 # AL

A 4 I A S 5 R R T AR R
Rt A g A 2 (R B
Q) (14 o B 2 e o e 0 1) 4
B o FR 5 SV 75 AR T A R R SR AR
A R - Sl T Al 8 3 B T
H B B A BT < BR D5 A A
WIAh > % S B WA T L Tt 2
5o

W oR-WE=ZA=Z+—H- &
£ H A7 I B) A 5 95 #H224,600,000
W o K B R A131,500,000%
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S H R A [ 8 A5 1R
40,800,000%5 70 K i £ 48 B 4 ¥
25,500,000%% JG it B £1 fi 2 55
& A~F i 55 A% 42 JBt A W] VXL Capital
Partners Corporation Limited
(['VXLCPL |) Z £ 3K407,429,146
Wit AR _F WA+ H—HE
72 o bt iR U B S A7 AR AS B B B
# > I B4 7S 4 [ A A R A Ak
i Z e 175 - A L oC ik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In order to alleviate the Group’s liquidity risk, management is
implementing various measures to improve its cash flows. The
Group maintained its strategies of developing its properties
into hotels or commercial offices for leasing or sales, or, when
appropriate, outright sale to improve its liquidity. During the
year, the Company entered into six Equity Transfer Agreements
with independent third parties to sell 100% equity interest of
six subsidiaries for a total consideration of RMB117.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$149.0 million). Further, Chong
Qing “U” Inns & Hotels Management Co., Limited ( & B {4
BRBWEEEMARAA) (“Chongqing”) has terminated the
acquisition agreement for a hotel property located in the cities
of Chong Qing for a refund of RMBG6.8 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$8.5 million). As at 31 March 2014, the
Group has received a total sum of RMB50.1 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$63.2 million) from the aforesaid disposals
and termination of acquisition. Remaining balances of RMB74
million (equivalent to approximately HK$94.3 million) in
connection with the disposals are expected to be received in the
coming year when the disposals are completed. Subsequent to the
year-end, the Group has received a total amount of RMB26.0
million (equivalent to approximately HK$32.9 million) from

the respective buyers upon completion of disposals of two

subsidiaries.

On 6 March 2014, the then ultimate holding company of the
Group, VXLCPL entered into a sale and purchase agreement
to dispose of its approximate 69.91% equity interest in the
Company to Crown Landmark Corporation (“CLC”). After the

completion of this transaction, CLC has become the ultimate

holding company of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. ERGEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In addition, subsequent to the year end, the following activities
were carried out by management of the Group under the
direction of the current ultimate holding company to improve the

Group’s liquidity:

(I) On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with ChangJiang Securities Brokerage (HK)
Limited (“ChangJiang Securities”), the placing agent,
pursuant to which the placing agent has conditionally
agreed to procure, on a best-effort basis, the placees
to subscribe for a promissory note up to an aggregate
principal amount of HK$120,000,000. The transaction
was completed on 25 June 2014 with net proceeds of
HK$119,316,000 raised. The promissory note bears
interest at 3% per annum; and is of 3-years maturity period

repayable in June 2017. (Note 32(a));

(2) On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into another
Placing Agreement with ChangJiang Securities, the placing
agent, pursuant to which the placing agent conditionally
agreed to place up to 300,000,000 placing shares to the
placees at the placing price of HK$0.36 on a best effort
basis. On 26 June 2014, the Group has obtained the
approval from the listing committee of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, which has agreed to grant a listing
of and permission to deal with the placing shares. As of the
date of this report, ChangJiang Securities is in the process of
completing this transaction with administrative procedures
in progress. The estimated net proceeds to be raised from
the placing shares will be approximately HK$107,375,760
and the transaction is expected to be completed no later

than 2 July 2014. (Note 32(b));

2.1

(1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

3)

(4)

On 27 June 2014, VXLCPL and the Company entered
into an agreement, under which VXLCPL has agreed
to unconditionally and irrevocably waive part of the
outstanding borrowing as at 31 March 2014 due to
VXLCPL amounting to HK$138,124,765. As a result
of such waiver, the loan payable to VXLCPL amounted
to HK$269,304,381 with no further interest and other
obligations. (Note 32(c));

For the repayment of the amount of HK$269,304,381,
the Company and VXLCPL has entered into an escrow
agreement under which the Company will transfer an
amount of HK$220,000,000 from the net proceeds of
the placing arrangements as mentioned in (1) and (2) to
the agreed escrow account on or before 4 July 2014. The
remaining amount of HK$49,304,381 will also transferred
to that escrow account on or before 29 August 2014. All
sums in the escrow account shall be released to VXLCPL on

2 October 2014.

On 27 June 2014, CLC advanced an amount of
HK$10,000,000 to the Company which is unsecured
and interest free. CLC has agreed not to demand the
Company for repayment until after the Group has received
the remaining disposal proceeds of HK$61,400,000 from
the disposals of subsidiaries mentioned above; and until
the Group has sufficient fund for its working capital

requirements. (Note 32(d));

2. EERGHEBOR (#)

2.1 B WAL (H])

(3)

(4)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFEIBUOR (4)

(Continued)
2.1 MR YE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s cash
flow projections prepared by management, which cover a period
of twelve months from the date of the consolidated statement
of financial position. Based on the cash flow projections, the
directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the above
measures, the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet
its financial obligations within the next twelve months from the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position as and
when they fall due. Accordingly, the directors considered that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statement on a

going concern basis.

(a) The following new standards and amendments to standards

are mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 April 2013:

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Financial statements presentation

HKAS 27 (Revised) Separate financial statements

HKAS 28 (Revised) Investments in associates and joint ventures

HKEFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

HKEFRS 11 Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures on asset and
liability offsetting

HKAS 36 Impairments of Assets

HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans

The adoption of the above new and revised HKASs or
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

The following relevant HKASs, HKFRSs, amendments
to existing HKFRSs and interpretation of HKFRS have

been published and are mandatory for accounting periods

beginning on or after 1 April 2013 or later periods and have

not been early adopted by the Group:

HKAS 19 (Amendment)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKERS 9
HKERS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendment)

HKERS 14

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Annual Improvement Projects

January 2014
2014

January 2016

Defined benefit plans®

Financial instruments: Presentation - offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities"

Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial
assets'

Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement — novation of derivatives and
continuation of hedging accounting'

Financial instruments*

Investment entities'

Regulatory deferral accounts®

Levies'

Annual improvement to 2010-2012 cycle and
2011-2013 cycle?

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1 July

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1

Effective date to be determined

2. EERGHEBOR (#)

2.1 RS (4H)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEFEIBUOR (4)

(Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 MR YE (4])
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
The Group will apply the above HKFRSs, amendments to AR 1 bl v B
existing HKFRSs and interpretations of HKFRS when they HAE R B T R

become effective. The directors of the Company anticipate

that the application of the other new and revised Standards,

e 2 A5 5T M A v T
e ) 2 R R B G A SR T DA

Amendments or Interpretations will have no material impact JEFH o A% v W) # S A - BB

on consolidated financial statements. FOAtl T RT B SR T HE RN~ BT
A B B 6 B A B B R
0 R

The Group has already commenced an assessment of A [ T B 4R B AL BR AN bl

the related impact of adopting the above new standards, B wT R DL K B R 2

amendments and revisions to existing standards to the BT Bt A M 2 A B

Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state whether S o AL 1 R BB E B A

substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies and HEAR LR M 2 6 EOR K AR

presentation of the consolidated financial statements will be HMBREZ 25 7B

resulted. RS ) o

2.2 Consolidation 22 HEMRH

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries for the year

ended 31 March 2014.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity. The
Group also assesses existence of control where it does not
have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-

facto control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR (M)

(Continued)
22 HalRHE (4)
(a) MIEFA Al (4)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

54

De-facto control may arise from circumstances where it does
not have more than 50% of the voting power but is able to
govern the financial and operating policies by virtue of de-

facto control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Profits and losses resulting from inter-company transactions
that are recognised in assets are also eliminated. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

(a) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded

in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. ERGEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change
in carrying amount recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The fair value
is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less

impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of

investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required

upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend

exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in

the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of

the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the

carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the

investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting

2.5

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with

the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-

maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the

Company.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

(b)

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2. EERGHEBOR (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. ERGEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance stated at
statement of financial position presented are translated

at the closing rate at the end of reporting period;

(i) income and expenses for ecach statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at exchange rates

prevailing at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the equity
holders of the Company are reclassified to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

B AT PR ] mmqgéﬁg,n_

2.5 B ()
() B4 A

(d)

A 5 W T BT A o) fE B B
EREWAF (2
MR IR AT R 2 B
W) Z JE AR T B IR UL > A
TR RN

(i) REMEMRIEDRIE
B T BG4S T A R K
e 5 01 R =2 Wi Tl 2
=

(i) 2B HEEZBAR
X T 8 R S
A% I 1 3 4 3 I 5% %
25 HHEITERE R
R RO Z A PR A SR B
Abo FEBLIE T T - A K
XHREBEZR S BH
RE W ARG Rk

(iii) A B A A 2 B S
N TR AN

£
o

B P E T

B RO SE B R (B A 4R
i A S B 2 A WM AR - B
& EPRE B EEINES
Z if i > W) 2 P B > o
BWRK QAW EHE I
7] 7 ) 2 8 2 I ) 4 o e -
WEREYREGEEIEE
ZHEAFZEREEN) -
TP B 25 P9 R AR 4y A A R A
N E A % 2 5 4 4y Bt Z B
AR ZHER S BELS

2 TH WAL 2 % o

—



58

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate cost to their residual values

over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Hotel properties

— Furniture and fixtures

— Office equipment and machinery
— Computer and related equipment

— Motor vehicles

Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over their expected

useful lives to the Group.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each of the end of reporting period.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately to write down
an asset’s carrying amount to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are netted off or

recognised within “Other gain” in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

3 — 5 years
3 — 5 years
3 — 5 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. ERGEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

207/

2.8

Land use rights

Land use rights which are prepayment of land leases stated at
cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment
losses. Cost represents consideration and directly attributable
transaction costs paid or payable for the rights to use the land for
periods between 30 and 50 years. Amortization of land use rights
is calculated on the straight-line method over the period of the

land use rights.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for
as if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each of the end of reporting period by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes
in fair values are recorded in the income statement as part of a

valuation gain or loss in “Other gain”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —MF=H =—1—H ILF /&

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Investment properties (Continued)

If the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to being
held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or
both, and that is not occupied by the Group, it is reclassified
as an investment property, measured at fair value at the date of
reclassification and the difference between the fair value and the

net book value of the investment property is recognised in the

other comprehensive income.

2.9 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is made
if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount of

the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are

stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to

sell.

2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The
classification depends on the purposes for which the financial

assets were acquired. The Group determines the classification of

its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # 2 —F—PJ4E = =+— H 1L F/F

2. ERGEBOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short-term. Derivatives are classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at

fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ category
are presented in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as part
of other operating income when the Group’s right to receive

payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the end of reporting
period. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are classified as ‘Receivables, prepayments and
deposits” and ‘Bank balances and cash’ in the consolidated
statement of financial position (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).
Loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the

effective interest method.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are cither designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or the Group intends
to dispose of the investment within 12 months after the end
of reporting period. Investments are initially recognised at
fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried
at fair value. Fair value changes are recognized in other
comprehensive income, net of tax, and accumulated in
equity in fair value reserve. The unlisted equity instruments,
for which the fair value is not reliably measurable, are
measured at cost. The fair value of unquoted instruments
is not reliably measurable if the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
instrument and the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in

estimating fair value.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current
bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active
(and for unlisted securities), the Group established fair
value by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, making maximum
use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on

entity-specific inputs.

2. ERGHEBUR (8)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR ()

(Continued)
211 B &EE (4)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group assesses at each of the end of reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on equity
instruments are not reversed through the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

2.12 Impairment of receivables

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of
receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganization, and default or delinquency in
payments are considered indicators that the receivable is
impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
‘Other operating expenses’. When a receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against ‘Other operating expenses  in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR (M)

(Continued)

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less from date of investment and bank

overdrafts.

2.14 Borrowings and compound financial instruments

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it

relates.
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2.14 Borrowings and compound financial instruments

(Continued)

Compound financial instrument issued by a subsidiary of the
Company comprises preferred shares that are convertible to
common shares of the subsidiary, and the number of shares to be
issued does not vary with changes in their fair value. The liability
component of the compound financial instrument is recognised
initially at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have
an equity conversion option. The equity component is recognised
initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound
financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability
component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are
allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to
their initial carrying amounts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the compound financial instrument is
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The equity component of the compound financial instrument
is not re-measured subsequent to initial recognition. The equity

component is allocated to the non-controlling interest.

At the time when the convertible preferred shares are converted
into ordinary shares, the difference between the equity
component and the relevant share disposed of the carrying value
of net assets of the subsidiary was recognised directly in capital

reserve and attributable to the owners of the parent.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least 12 months after the end of reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

2. ERGHEBUR (8)

2.15 B3] e 908 % Pt 15 B

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised directly in consolidated statement
of changes in equity, in which case they are recognised in

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period in the countries where the company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to

be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted
for. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of

reporting period are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilized.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGFEIBUOR (4)

(Continued)
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2.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on ecither the taxable entity or different taxable entities

where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlements is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-
tax interest rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as

interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incidental costs directly

attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A liability is recognized for the
estimated payment for annual leave as a result of services

rendered by employees up to the end of reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or

paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and

a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are generally held in separate trustee-
administered funds. Contributions to the MPF Scheme by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of

the employees’ basic salaries.
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2. ERGEBUOR (4)

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Company’s subsidiaries in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. The retirement scheme contributions are based
on a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’

employees.

The contributions are charged to the consolidated statement

of comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, known as Share Option Scheme (the
“Scheme”). The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At each end of
reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable.
It recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, and a corresponding adjustment to equity over the

remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal

value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR (M)

(Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition 2.19 Wi 5 il 8

70

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added

taxes.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be

measured reliably on the following bases:

i) Income from hotel room rental, food and beverage and
other services is recognised when the relevant services are

provided.

ii) Rental income receivable under operating leases is

recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

iii) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

2.20 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.20 Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee

(a)

(b)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalized at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding
rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
other short-term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the lease period so
as to produce a constant rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEGEIBUOR (M)

(Continued)
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2.21 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

74

A contingent asset or liability is a possible asset or obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more

uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow of economic resources occurs so that

the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain,

an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group has not used any derivative financial

instruments to hedge its risk exposures.

Risk management for the Company and its subsidiaries in PRC
is carried out by the Executive Committee (“Excom”). Excom
identifies, evaluates and monitors financial risk in close co-
operation with the Group’s operating units. The Group monitors
the financial risk continuously to minimize the risk, such as
foreign exchange risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest

rate risk and cash management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. W b A PR (4F)
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WA bs & (4)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (a) SN B
The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions AEFBWEE ABRRS
are principally denominated in HK dollars, United States B REYEIT - KX KARK
dollars (“US dollars”) and Renminbi (“RMB”). The FHE o ASHE H AR 2 A v I 2
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from its P T 2 A 2 A L B o B i
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17,000,000% 0 (Z&F —=
AF B B4R B £ 15,600,000
JG) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 0 5 o B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —F=H =—1—H Ik F /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Price risk

(c)

The Group is exposed to club debentures price risk which
is held by the Group and classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position as available-for-sales financial
assets. The Group maintained club debentures investments
for long-term strategic purpose and the Group’s overall

exposure to price risk is not significant.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
receivables, investments and bank deposits. The exposures to

these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of receivables, the Group closely monitors the
credit performances and prompt repayments from the
counterparties. The Group has policies in place to review the
recoverability of other receivables on an ongoing basis and
assess the adequacy of provision for impairment. Further
quantitative darta in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk arising from receivables, prepayments and deposits
are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

In respect of bank deposits, the Group has diversified its
exposures into different financial institutions. It has policies
in place to assess the credit standing of the counterparties

and financial institutions before the Group invests its assets.

3. s b R ()

3.1 W B ks R & (4])
(b) {4 B

(c)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 13 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR B A B ()

(Continued)
3.1 A E Bs K & (4])

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (d) B & & b
The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources AEEBE M —RH T (B
including sharcholder’s loan, orderly realisation of short- JBe BRBE K ~ AR AR [ 8 Al
term financial assets, receivables and certain assets that the HERAMNAEZERTAE
Group considers appropriate and advantageous to dispose i 55 35 e 40 W 5 - R WAGK
of. Equity and other long term financing including strategic TE e T AU K B ) A i B
partnerships, or strategic joint ventures are also considered ¥ 4 o AEE I 6 ] 55 B
by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group’s Jie B % At = ST R (L4 SR
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of I 5 £ TR AR SR
funding and flexibility through the use of the Group’s A AT E AR RN o AR
available cash and other interest-bearing loans. B 2 H B AR SR
2z W] ) B KA B
FEK o 70 W 0 A e L
2 ] A A5 - 1 o
The Group monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity reserve A4 B AR R TE A B i > B
which comprises borrowing facilities and cash and cash P 0 ) Bl A 2 B T
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flow. T - 7 B A A 95 £ K

R BL G e Bl Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the date of the statement
of financial position to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
approximate their carrying balances, as the impact of

discounting is not significant.

3. s b P ()

3.1 BB LB R R (4)
(d) IE &k (4)

T AT R B B R UL H
W E= &R H Z R 65k ]
A 4 B R A A ) 2 B B
A 5 B 20 090 AL 9 AT 2 4y
M o 3 BT 9 B 2 U0 B
PR MBI G o i B
WEWAER -RTZMEAN
B A SLIL IR T AR R A

Less than Between

1year 1 and S5 years

—4ER — R4
HKS$’000 HK$’ 000
Tl Tl
Group AR
At 31 March 2014 R_-F—ME=ZH=1+—H
Borrowings i 407,429 -
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % M IR H 69,149 -
At 31 March 2013 R o2 -=4£=H=1+—H
Borrowings i 448,383 -
Payables and accruals JRE A 3k L % M it XL H 106,945 =
Company A5y )
At 31 March 2014 BB —NE=ZH=+—H
Borrowings i 407,429 -
Payables and accruals JE A 2k JE % E ST IE B 1,626 =
At 31 March 2013 R oF-=FE=A=1+—H
Borrowings 8 3 448,383 -
Payables and accruals JE A 2k JE % 5T IE B 1,815 -
Note:  Accrued employee benefits are excluded in this table. PFifgE : Db IR A W HE EEHE B

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014

FEH o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. AR B A B ()
(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 WA bs & (4)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) F& i@ K
The Group’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits A 45 8 R L B R B SR AT 7
and borrowings. The Group monitors and limits its interest K B AR o A S 02 O A PR
rate risk exposure through management of maturity profile, A BWAE  BRERE E K
currency mix and choice of fixed and floating interest rates. Tl B3R - B B ] LA
JE B <
The Group does not have significant cash flow interest rate B8 B S A A AR I A
risk as the interest-bearing assets have no significant impact R B WA I i R 52
to the Group. Borrowings bearing interest at fixed rates R Z B4 it B R 2 g o %
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group i & A R GE B Z Kk A AR R
manages its interest rate exposure of borrowings with a focus P 75 32 O P AEL P 5 L R o AR 4R
on reducing the overall cost of debt. P 725 38 S 3 R DA B S AR

JRAR A B A sk 2 ) 3R

The Group currently does not use any interest rate P 9= s R R SR
derivative contracts or other financial instruments to hedge RATA A A S b E TR
against its interest rate risk exposure. 3 i By A 52 2 ) R B o
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 B A A\ e 4 B
The capital structure of the Group consists of owner’s equity AR ] 2 B A R A R
and debts, which include borrowings, bank balances and cash A W 25 S A % > b B FE A k- SR
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company which A7 45 8% B B 42 DA B A o i) HE 25 &
comprises the issued share capital and accumulated losses. B NREAGHERS > AR W) HERS FE A A
FEMRERE M B O BITRARR
wt A -
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard A AR A5 B AR 2 H OB R AR
the Group’s ability to continue to provide returns for 45 18 A BE 7 F 28 R JBe TR B 43 ] i
shareholders and to support the Group’s stability and growth. B S Fp AR ) 2 R € e Y 1= o ARKAR
The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to VA 52 3 A P A B - DA
ensure optimal capital structure to maintain a balance between AR TR A B 2 AR A > A
higher shareholders™ returns that might be possible with higher R Il e (VT BE P B R i kK )
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by BLES A 2 B AR UL 2R 2 B 2 K
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital PR W 2 TR BRSSP £ > SIf PR R 488 5 1
structure in light of changes in economics conditions. U5 Bl T ) R A A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. The

gearing ratios at 31 March 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

3. s b P ()

3.2 B R BB (4
A 4 LA B 2 A LB B B
LY St SLTD St ST
A= A2 AR R T -

2014 2013

“EFNgE SR =8

HK$’000 HK$’000

T# 7t T# T

Total borrowings (Note 26) 185 K BB (B 5E26) 407,429 448,383

Less: Bank balances and cash Uk : SRAT AR B4 (41,277) (90,8006)

Net debt A 25 366,152 357,577

Total equity RE #5403 (39,693) 5,143

Total capital AR 326,459 362,720

Net debt/total capital ratio EBFH BEARL R 112.2% 98.6%

Net debt/total equity ratio B AR HE S AR L R N/A A3 6952.7%
Note:  The ratio is not representable as total equity is in deficit Bk sk« Hy R RE 25 49 %0 B 0 s Al IR

position.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. W5 b PR (4F)
(Continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AP Z A st
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair TERGEATFEIRZ MHE TR
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been YA 7 B AT 240 M7 o AS ] g 4%
defined as follows: REWT :
. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical o MM H A S A R E B
assets or liabilities (level 1); ZHE(RBHEE) (55—
#%) s
e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 o BREE— P EE K iy BRAE AL
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly A B e kA A B
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) T E % (BP AR A (8 A% ) s M
(level 2); and B (BP A4 B ) B30 15
(SE=#) s &
e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on o K BHE B S A
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) Sif L 7wl B T 4 i (B
(level 3). AAE W AEY) (8=
#) o
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that TRBHN=H=+—HARELH
are measured at fair value at 31 March: A TFHEFIBZEEKRARE:
Level 2
%
2014 2013
R R =4
HKS$’000 HK$'000
T T Tt
Assets &
Available-for-sale financial assets W]t B A A

club debenture T E R 1,128 1,128




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BB R By A B ()

(Continued)
3.3 KN PEZ M ()

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

80

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of reporting period.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an

arm’s length basis.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximize the use of observable market
data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an

instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments

include:

*  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

e Other techniques, such as inputs from recent arm’s length

transaction or discounted cash flow analysis, are used to

determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments.

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 for both years.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 285 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

4. HOK G R0 EE M OA Bi

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

In the process of applying the accounting policies described in Note

2 above, the Group has made the following judgments that have the

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the future, and

other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the financial position

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

carrying amounts of the Group’s assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are disclosed below.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates

(a)

(b)

Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
depreciation rates for its property, plant and equipment. The
Group will revise the depreciation rates where useful lives
are different to previous estimation, or it will write off or
write down the value of those assets which are technically

obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or

sold.

Income taxes

It is the Group’s policy to recognize deferred tax assets for
unused tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilized, based on all
available evidence. Recognition primarily depends on the
Group’s expectation of future taxable profit that will be
available against which tax losses can be utilized. The details

of the assessment are disclosed in Note 27.

B AT PR ] mm@g&ﬁg,n_

A5 ME b SCB RE 277 At o st 3R 2 o
s AR T R B B A A B R R
Vo Tk < A o e TR K B 2 B -
AR Z TR e B I B 2 4R 00 3% H 38 Bl
Pl A M SRR (A E R
Jo iy 2 T T AR AR S B4 B A S A AR
Wz M A R T AR TR )
R X e o

41 A Fatfiit

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical accounting judgement

(a) Classification as investment properties and owner-occupied

properties

The Management of the Group determines whether the
acquired hotel properties qualify as investment properties.
If the property would be classified as investment property,
the property would be measured using fair value model.
In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the
property generates cash flows largely independent of the
other assets held by an entity and the level of ancillary
services provided to the tenants. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property

but also to other assets used in the production or supply

process.

(b) Impairment of assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill or
assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered any
impairment. Other assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit has been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates,

such as discount rates, future profitability and growth rates.

4. TR G ah A EE R A Bi

(%)

4.2 BRI B

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the chief operating decision-maker, namely the executive
directors, for their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are principally engaged

in (i) property investment and (ii) hotel operations.

5. BIEB M A E R

A AR R 9 i R SR PSRN (B
PUATE ) s 2 0 R
35 5 B A oy R BB - T % S R
B EORE TS B BAT HE T A 5 I 2 AL R
B> Z RS TR PSR > S B4 S
B % 45 AL BB 7 2 AR B o 1) BUAT R
2 1A S 25 R O SR S s AL
EET )W EBE 2 K Gl EEE

2014 2013

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T# 5t T#T

Revenue from hotel operations ) S B W AR 896 3,147
Rental income LN 5,085 3,480
5,981 6,627

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other business segments. Summarized details of

the business segments are as follows:

a)  the hotel operations segment is engaged in hotel rental and food

& beverage business;

b)  the property investment segment is investment in properties; and

c) the unallocated segment comprises operations other than those

specified in (a) and (b) above and includes that of the corporate
office.

ARG T SR T AR A M R
PR i 2 B B o AR AR 2
SE oy A R — IR SR W S B LA
LT 7R 5% JE I B O A T A A S 3
B o HE o SR o HE A BEAE T

a) i T ) A O SR s AL R
BN

b) MIEBE WAL T REE K

o ARAEIEH A L3 ()& bG)HE

Finddt % VA Sb 2 3685 - 645 AR 4 B o
HE

SMEBAIRAT 20132014 W

TN Y




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEHERSWER (4)

84

INFORMATION (Continued)

Capital expenditure comprise additions to investment properties
(Note 17), property, plant and equipment (Note 15), land use rights
(Note 16) and construction in progress (Note 18). Segment assets
consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, land use rights,
construction in progress, investments and receivables. Segment
liabilities comprise borrowings and operating liabilities. Unallocated
assets and liabilities mainly represent assets and liabilities used by the
corporate office, which cannot be allocated on a reasonable basis to any

segment. They include items such as corporate borrowings.

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) resulted by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, finance income,
finance cost, fair value gain on investment properties, release of
available-for-sale financial assets reserve upon disposal, impairment loss

reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets reserve and taxation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Bra AR EE (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEBEEHBER ()
INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment results, depreciation and amortization, and capital BE_F-NE{R _F-=4£=H
ZA— H A - R4 R # 4 2

G S A DT e i DA B A B S

expenditure based on reportable segments for the years ended 31

March 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

T
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated  The Group
] 4
mERE 0 ) 8 SHME RAREE AEH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tl Tl Tl T Tl
For the year ended BE N4
31 March 2014 =A==t HIbEE
Segment revenue: vigi &g
Sales to external customers % P o 5,085 896 5,981 - 5,981
Segment results Vigi E 3 976 15,344 16,320 (11,414) 4,906
Finance income KA 18 325 343 21 364
Finance costs A (2,081) (15,364) (17,445) (27,284) (44,729)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBETT (REH) /i A (1,087) 305 (782) (38,677) (39,459)
Taxation B (229) (1,063) (1,292) - (1,292)
(Loss)/profit for the year EN (R R (1,316) (758) (2,074) (38,677) (40,751)
Other segment information oAl W E R
Depreciation and amortization Pr# T 8 157 2,120 2,277 146 2,423
Written back of other payables 185 [o] 2 b JE £5F 2 0 - 1,814 1,814 - 1,814
Written off of property, W ¥ - A R R
plant and equipment - 2,764 2,764 - 2,764
Additions to wE
— Property, plant and S ER T Y&
equipment - 1,924 1,924 9 1,933

W EBARAT 201320
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

Note:

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BREBR S EER ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
Total for
Property Hotel reportable
investment operations segments  Unallocated ~ The Group
]
WERE  WEEE AR RAEIEHH N
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T W0
For the year ended BRE-Z—=4
31 March 2013 ZA=+—HIEHE
Segment revenue: 3 R W 4 ¢
Sales to external customers IR P B 3,480 3,147 6,627 - 6,627
Segment results VS 4,972 (22,749) (17,777) (3,400) (21,177)
Finance income Hp TN 12 184 196 262 458
Finance costs A A (1,888) (17,790) (19,678) (26,958) (46,636)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBLTHA, (K1) 3,096 (40,355) (37,259) (30,096) (67,355)
Taxation eI (5,083) (4) (5,087) (89) (5,172)
Loss for the year N R (1,987) (40,359) (42,346) (30,181) (72,527)
Other segment information Fo At 43 75 & B
Depreciation and amortization P78 T 4 8 277 6,646 6,923 625 7,548
Fair value gain on BEWEZ AT HEEN
investment properties 4,085 - 4,085 - 4,085
Reversal of provision for 188 51 JOE o JE 3 A5
receivable = = = 4,100 4,100
Written back of other payables 5 1 il JE £+ 3k JH = 1,427 1,427 = 1,427
Additions to WE
— Property, plant and BEN: YT
equipment - 53,099 53,099 7 53,106
— Construction in progress —fER L 1,899 - 1,899 - 1,899

Hotel operations segment included hotels which have not been in operations as

at 31 March 2014.

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately HK$2.4 million and HK$2 million
(FY2013: HK$2.1 million and HK$1.0 million) were derived from
Customer A and Customer B in the property investment segment
respectively. No other single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group’s revenue for both FY2014 and FY2013.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT 5. BEBEEHBER ()

INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities based on reportable segments as at 31

March 2014 and 2013 are as follows:

BB MR- SHE=A=
T = 3T 8 43 5 8043 2 40 9 7 e 1

fEmr

Total for

Property Hotel  reportable
investment  operations segments  Unallocated  The Group

Lk 33
mERE  WEEE  SWEE KoEEA AL W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Fx T

At 31 March 2014 /A S 13
ZA=Z+—H
Segment assets HIE 165,793 292,420 458,213 1,708 459,921
Bank balances and cash MITHREE S 1,189 33,441 34,630 6,647 41,277
Total assets B A 166,982 325,861 492,843 8,355 501,198
Segment liabilities Vi d=Li 46,589 85,091 131,680 1,782 133,462
Borrowings 3k 21,754 160,627 182,381 225,048 407,429
Total liabilities AR 68,343 245,718 314,061 226,830 540,891
At 31 March 2013 RoF-=4
Z=A=+—H

Segment assets o R 151,713 336,577 488,290 2,329 490,619
Bank balances and cash BITRERAB 2 6,363 61,791 68,154 22,652 90,806
Total assets A 158,076 398,368 556,444 24,981 581,425
Segment liabilities i =L 29,457 91,293 120,750 7,149 127,899
Borrowings fiEak 19,791 146,128 165,919 282,464 448,383
Total liabilities A A 49,248 237,421 286,669 289,613 576,282
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

5. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT £
INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s businesses operate in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013
and non-current assets as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 based on

geographical area are as follows:

BRBW B uRE R (#)

A 9 B o A 3 o
MRE R S
S AR M 123 2 W A
RoR—WER R -SHZA={—
FI e 853 2 9 00 7 0

2014 2013
SEomE SR o=k
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T 0
Revenue e 25

Hong Kong b _ _
PRC 5 5,981 6,627
5,981 6,627

Non-current assets e B &
Hong Kong T s 8 1,503
PRC H 198,027 396,804
198,035 398,307

Revenue is categorized based on the jurisdiction in which the
customers are located. Non-current assets are categorized based on

where the assets are located.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

6. OTHER GAIN 6. b & A
2014 2013
“ER g SR Z4
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T T# T
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 31) H B B A T 2 R
(FHE31) 28,530 —
Compensation received from termination of GBS RS2/ E P i
acquisition of property 1,145 -
Exchange gain on disposal and deregistration of B T R 4 1 A B A R 2
foreign subsidiaries iEE e, 2 1) 6,896 -
Other gain I Aih 2 ) 56 192
Written back of other payables $5% [0 At A K I 1,814 1,427
38,441 1,619
7. STAFF COSTS 7. & B AR
The staff costs disclosed below are for all employees and include all TR AR B R B A - B2
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14(a)). I E A (FaE14@a)) °
2014 2013
SR -NgE DR =4
HK$’000 HK$'000
T 0 F#HT
Directors’ fees EREAE 900 862
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits Wt 4 B FC b e 391 4 B A A 8,396 9,452
Provision/(Reversal) of unutilized annual leave RE) B (H) 22 (15)
Pension costs —-MPF (Note i) HRAR L A — o ]
ARE (kD) 87 92
Social security costs (Note ii) A R A (B ki) 977 1,469

10,382 11,860
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

7. STAFF COSTS (Continued) 7. BB A (4)
Notes: Fff 5t -

i There were no forfeited contributions during the years ended 31 March i BE_ZF-NEE_F—-Z4=H

2014 and 2013.

= FOR AR B - S S Bl o

ii All employees of the subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC excluding ii AN Z B (A EEEEE) HEA

Hong Kong who are PRC citizens participate in employee social security
plans enacted in the PRC, including pension, medical and other welfare
benefits, which are organized and administrated by the government
authorities. According to the relevant regulations, the Group contributes
on a monthly basis based on certain percentages of the salaries of the
employees, subject to a certain ceiling, and are paid to the labor and social

welfare authorities. Contributions to the plans are expensed as incurred.

W BT By R AR 3 2 SR
W HEAT 2 (R H AL DR e o % 4
H R4 ) O B A B > A LR IR AR
4~ B R S At AR A o 52 SRR B R4
AL A RBREH S ETHS
Vo i %5 T A 4 0 A8 D 40 o sk (e
A AT BRI o it AR AR
JRE A I 3 8 o

8. OPERATING LOSS 8. %R
2014 2013
“E Mg ZER=4F
HKS$’000 HK$’000
it Tl
Operating loss is arrived at after charging/ R RS- iU

(crediting): ek (5FA) ¢
Legal and professional fee Y E S 384 479
Consultancy fee R ] 2 2,274 475
Depreciation and amortization 7 % i 8 2,423 7,548
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S i T 4 9200 833
Net exchange gain [E Be, 24 ) v (273) (1,353)
Reversal of provision for receivable J8% [ JE WALk T 5 e - (4,100)
Written off of property, plant and equipment ST 2 ~ B2 T2 ik A 2,764 -
Office rental N T 1,908 1,863
Direct costs attributable to operating lease A58 7 L B AN LB AR 12 20

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 U 285 A ik (%)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

9. FINANCE INCOME 9. MBLWA
2014 2013
e LAt e
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T it
Bank interest income SRAT A B A 364 458
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. 3 & A
2014 2013
SEoeWE SRS
HK$’°000 HK$’000
Tl Tt
Interest on finance leases il & AL B A S - 15
Other interest and finance costs on borrowings il 53k Z AR B, B b AR 44,729 46,621
44,729 46,636
11. TAXATION 11. BEIH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax (FY 2013: Nil) has been made PP A 458 T 77 A 4 BE 3 0 JRE S Bt 6 A1) -
for the year as the Group has no assessable profit for the year. Taxation WO AF A 3 8 5 8 R A B A A
on PRC profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit (=R M B4R B J) o b R e A
for the year at the rates of taxation in the PRC. Z BLH ORI P I 2 BRI S 2 E N
i R I = A
The provision of deferred income tax on fair value gain on appreciated BB 2 CHEREWHEZ AT
investment properties recovered through sale, has been made according A 78 ] =2 08 J2E Fr 455 438 £ T 4R B2 4 B v
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and I 5t 5 35 A1) e 3 LT R WA AR 4
regulations. 5 o

S BARAT 2013
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

11. TAXATION (Continued)

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

11. 58 (#)

Aok B A2 T WA AR N A B 2 B T 4

i

2014 2013

L L= e

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T-#o0

Current tax — PRC B3 5t 0E — o 1,292 7
Deferred taxation 1 %L i JEH - 5,165
1,292 5,172

The tax on the Group’s loss before taxation differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable

to the results of the consolidated companies as follows:

7455 1 I3 s 1R 2 5 L B 0 A Ak
B0 ) SRR IRET 3 B R G Bl
L Z ZE /W T

2014 2013

“F Mg ZF =4

HK$’000 HKS$’000

it Tl

Loss before income taxation B Fir 4 54 1 s 15 (39,459) (67,355)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 2T 7 4% ) 3 R I i ) 2

profits in the respective jurisdictions W B R EH 2 B IE (5,029) (8,691)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ST B B 3 B I 5 B 9,838 7,722

Tax effect of non-taxable revenue o B A5 = B I R B (6,063) 271)

Deferred tax assets not recognised R T 8 2 9 A i T 2,546 5,358

Provision for land appreciation tax ke 3 1 A 8 4 - 1,406

Current income tax effect on land appreciation tax = Hiu 4 6 = B 351 iy 745 A5t 5 %% - (352)

Tax charge BiIE ¥ 1,292 5,172

12.LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent
of a loss of HK$68.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2014 (year
ended 31 March 2013: loss of HK$48.1 million).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

13.BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER 13, AR 24 ) B 4 15 A N 4G
ORDINARY SHARE FOR LOSS FOR AN N IR < B I 2 ik
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HE AR B s 18
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Basic loss per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the loss () BB R B AR S 48 T3 D4R R
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted ATRERFA NEAMEERRC
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. BEAT I 9 i R V- 3 SR A o
2014 2013

S L

Loss for the year attributable to owner of A ) BEA N AL

the Company, HK$’000 FENEE > THT (45,288) (70,799)
Weighted average number of CBAT I 8 B A 73 8
ordinary shares in issue 1,529,600,200 1,529,600,200
Basic loss per ordinary share, HK cents i T 0 2 BBk A s 4H - WAL (2.96) (4.63)
(b) The calculation of diluted loss per ordinary share is based on the (b) B R s 2 5T L
loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company A B BE 25 FF AN REAG 4R A s 15
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares used, which YA & XY S S TN
is the same for calculating basic loss per ordinary share above, as 18 22 A T 3 2 B n RE T 2 B ks
the Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares R4 PR ARA R REEZE N
arising from share options for the two years ended 31 March FEA=ZTHRER DR =42
2014 and 31 March 2013. A=+ — B 1k w47 5 0 2 U
38 EAGRUE S ACKN Y&




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14, 3 3 Fo & 4055 PTG &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EHME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BEZF—WNE=H=1+—HIL4E
year ended 31 March 2014 were as follows: FEOA S EMN S EREZAEWT :
Employer’s
Employee  contribution
Other  share option to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries benefits** benefits scheme Total
ER0!
fEEEBHE R AEE
HRES fd W& Al 8 A+ A Ml R K

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T# 7 T# 7 T# 7 T# 7 T# 7 T# 7

Executive directors Hirk®

Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) SRR - - - - - -
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H A - 2,189 540 - 15 2,744
Independent Bk ES

non-executive directors
M. Alan Howard SMITH, J.p. 5 i ff 58 A: KP4+ 300 - - - - 300
Mr. David YU Hon To T e A 300 - - - - 300
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi M il 5 300 - - - - 300

900 2,189 540 - 15 3,644
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Directors for the BRE_FR-=ZH=ZHA=Z1+—HIL#
year ended 31 March 2013 were as follows: FEOA SR EMNSEREZMEWT
Employer’s
Employee  contribution
Other  share option to pension
Name of directors Fees Salaries benefits** benefits scheme Total
1 3 1
R B BCHE  ARIR A
HRUEH H g ¥& oAb A A MRl AR BE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
T T T T# TH#T TH#
Executive directors Hirk®
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (i) SEREBEE ) B B B B B B
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei H Bt e - 1,791 527 = 15 2,333
Independent B kg

non-executive directors
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.2. % i ffi 56 4 K - # 1 300 - - - - 300
Dr. Allen LEE Peng ZEB R K ¥ 1 (i)

Fei, J.P. (ii) 150 - - - - 150
Mr. David YU Hon To AT e A 300 - - - - 300
M. SOO Ying Pooi (iii) i 6 2k (i) 112 - = 2 = 112

862 1,791 527 - 15 3,195
** Other benefits include housing allowance. o H bR A R R N
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Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

14. % 3 Je i3 2R 58 P T <

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) An Executive Director, Datuk LIM Chee Wah has waived
his emolument for the years ended 31 March 2014 and
2013.

(ii) Dr. Allen Lee Peng Fei, J.P,, has ceased to be the Company’s
independent non-executive director since 28 September

2012.

(iif) Mr. SOO Ying Pooi was appointed on 16 November 2012.

(iv) Datuk LIM Chee Wah and Mr. XIAO Huan Wei have
ceased to be the Company’s executive directors since 27

May 2014.

(v) Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P., Mr. David YU Hon To
and Mr. Soo Ying Pooi have ceased to be the Company’s

independent non-executive directors since 27 May 2014.

The Company’s executive directors represent all of the
Company’s chief executives. Accordingly, no separate disclosure
in respect of the remuneration of the chief executives is made in

the financial statements.

S e .
= s =T - Lo %
BTN T R AN AN B
A N TR R .

(#)

(a) HHME ()

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

017 9 9 908 B8
REENER-F =
HEZHE A2
4ro

26 R T K P A %
—ZHJUH T NH AR
RN F Z B IE AT E R

BRRE B RN T — A
+—A+ANHEERL-

B AR BOHE I MRS A
“EF-NELA SRR
AERARN T ZPATESR

S EE i 5 A K Ak A
JBE 56 A e o M S Ak e %
—WERLAZ+EHEBAH
R AT Z IR AT E R

Ay T AT TS Ao R R B AT B
N H o R - B 2 Ak 1 I 5 AT B R
BTN B Z H o
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

14. % 5 o v 2058 B E T <&

(a)

No emoluments were paid to any director as an inducement to

join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of

office during the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(b)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year comprise 1 director and 4 employees (year
ended 31 March 2013: 1 directors and 4 employees). The details

of the emoluments payable to the 4 employees (year ended 31

March 2013: 4 employees) during the year are presented below:

(%)

M (4)

RE-F-WER RS
A= B LA JE - A% 24 7] JE 4
o 33630 AT 90 £ 23 7
855 0 A S s A A S
2 0 e 2 O

ETEZE 3% D Nan

AR R B ) T 44 B AN
W pERRNLAREE (KREZ
F=F=EH=F—HIRERE:
—HERERNAER) o 4F N R
ZNAREE (RE-Z-=Z4=H
Z=+h—HIREE:UARE) ZM

EHHERAIWMT
2014 2013
—EemE S®=
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T-#o0
Salaries and other short-term 4 B Ho A B AR B AR A
employee benefits 1,701 1,866
Pension costs — defined contribution plan IR AR S A — 52 B AL kT 30 15
1,731 1,881

Number of individuals

A
2014 2013
“E g 2R =

Emoluments band T 4> 1 [
HK$1 — HK$500,000 1¥# 78 —500,000% 76 3 B
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001%5 ¢ — 1,000,000%5 Jt: 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001%JE — 1,500,000%5 JT - -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 G — 2,000,000 %5 JG - -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 %58 —2,500,000% G - -
4 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y1 3¢ ~ B4 Skt fhi
a. The Group a. AHEH
Office
equipment Computer
Ho.tel Furniture and  and related Motor
properties  and fixtures %n/u\xc%hl%e % equgrﬂnﬁeg{ vehicles Total
WEwE  HRERE Rid MR L Ey

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T T T SR T

Cost A
Ac 1 April 2013 R_Z—ZHEMA—H 201,909 8,495 6,371 6,188 4,202 227,165
Additions RE 15 = 1,111 26 781 1,933
Disposals & = = (205) ) (1,650) (1,860)
Reclassified as assets T R b AR S

held for sale (114,182) (1,582) (5,765) (5) (12) (121,548)
Exchange difference M i 2 3,744 132 109 97 62 4,144
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB—MESAZ+—H 91486 7,044 1,620 6,301 3,383 109,834
Accumulated depreciation Rt
At 1 April 2013 HoR-ZENA—H 2,552 8,087 6,018 2,841 3,825 23,323
Charge for the year AN PR S — 166 512 505 306 1,489
Wiitten back on disposals 5 I 48t ol - - (205) 2,817 (1,430) 1,182
Reclassified as assets T R T AR s

held for sale (2,678) (1,503) (5,400) ) (11) (9,603)
Exchange difference JE 3 2 4 126 124 104 36 13 403
At 31 March 2014 RZB—WE=ZHA=+—H = 6,874 1,023 6,194 2,703 16,794
Net book value e T ¥
At 31 March 2014 REZF—-NE=A=+—H 91,486 170 597 107 680 93,040
Cost A
At 1 April 2012 RE-FB—-"HENH—H 244,442 13,406 6,349 6,140 4,198 274,535
Additions hE 53,058 20 = 28 = 53,106
Reclassified as investment [V Vi VEiact/ES

properties (9,831) = = - - (9,831)
Reclassified as assets R R A bR

held for sale (86,659) (4,977) - - - (91,636)
Exchange difference M i 2 899 46 22 20 4 991
At 31 March 2013 REZFB-ZHE=ZA=F—H 201,909 8,495 6,371 6,188 4,202 227,165
Accumulated depreciation 5 G-
At 1 April 2012 §~ P H—H 7,350 10,794 4,808 2,159 3,207 28,318
Charge for the year i 1,526 980 1,185 673 617 4,981
Reclassified as investment Eﬁ AERBRENE

properties (195) - - - - (195)
Reclassified as assets B R TR s

held for sale (6,164) (3,728) - - - 9,892)
Exchange difference I 5t 2% 4 35 41 25 9 1 111
At 31 March 2013 RE=F—=#=H="1—H 2,552 8,087 6,018 2,841 3,825 23,323
Net book value U T
At 31 March 2013 REZZF-Z22=ZA=Z+—H0 199357 408 353 3,347 377 203,842
Note: B
During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the property, plant and RREZZ-NE=ZH=+—HILF
equipment (FY2013: HK$9,636,000) was reclassified as investment SRR AR AR (2=
properties. AF BA BUAE BE £ 9,636,0003 70 ) 74 5 ¥ 4

2\
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 903 ~ HE s et (4)
(Continued)
b. The Company b. A2
Furniture Computer
and Office and related
fixtures equipment equipment Total
B R
BIMREER WA ERM AH A % k)
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

T T#T T T

Cost B A
At 1 April 2013 R-B-=ZFNHA—H 1,078 78 522 1,678
Disposal & = - - -
At 31 March 2014 AR

EF ==L 1,078 78 52 1,678
Accumulated depreciation 2t &
At 1 April 2013 RE-F—=ZFNA—H 1,078 78 522 1,678
Disposal e - - - -
Charge for the year 4 B 52 = = = -
At 31 March 2014 i F— A

EE E:—I—# H ____________________________________________
Net book value IR i 1
At 31 March 2014 AR

=H=+—H . . _ _
Cost B AR
At 1 April 2012 R-E—-ZHFNA—H 5,062 87 526 5,675
Disposal & (3,984) 9) (4) (3,997)
At 31 March 2013 hoR—E4

=A=+—H 1,078 78 522 1,678
Accumulated depreciation 2t &
At 1 April 2012 R-F—FNA—H 5,062 87 499 5,648
Disposal & (3,984) 9) (4) (3,997)
Charge for the year SE N B 32 - - 15 15
At 31 March 2013 RF—=4E

=Z=H=+—H LU GO 510 1,666
Net book value I TH) 5 ML
At 31 March 2013 N =

=H=+—H ie = s s
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

16. LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights, which represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values, are analysed as

16. - 1 {5 i BE

ACEE T - H 0 P A M AR (FRTH A AL
B R RO B R ) A AT

follows:
2014 2013
R g SR =4
HK$’°000 HK$’000
il Tl

Cost: JRA
At 1 April BHA—H 59,092 73,970
Reclassification S

Assets held for sale (Note 22) e &g E (Mik22) (53,926) (6,909)

Investment properties (Note 10) Bk (Kakio) - (8,057)
Exchange difference [ ba, 2% %A 1,771 88
At 31 March R=A=+—H 6937 59,092
Accumulated amortization 2t B 8
At 1 April BHA—H 7,770 7,061
Charge for the year 4B X 934 2,567
Reclassification 8

Assets held for sale (Note 22) FeAe B & B (Fhik22) (7,139) (998)

Investment property (Note 10) B Wk (Kakio) - (890)
Exchange difference [ ba, 2% H 27 30
At 31 March R=A=+—H 1,592 7,770
Net book value W T 1
At 31 March W=H=+—H 5,345 51,322
Note: Fff 5t

During the year ended 31 March 2014, none of the land use rights (FY2013:
HK$7,167,000) was reclassified as investment properties.

LG A A

MBRER-WE=ZH=1—H L
L 0 4 b A P RE (= — =4 W B4R
7,167,000% JG ) 3 87 /> B 2 B G 3¢ o
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Ak 3 W 5 R B ek ()

For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

rentals is measured using the fair value model.

16. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 16. - 3 £ ) BE ()
The Group’s interests in land use rights at their net book value are AHE R L o R 2R (HH R
analyzed as follows: BEFNE) T E -
2014 2013
L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F#x ToT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: FWHEA > DL e H ¢
Leases of less than 10 years AR10EZHE - =
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 102504 Z fl & 5,345 51,322
5,345 51,322
17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. & W 3%
Group
A 4
2014 2013
e L=t e
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x T#oc
At 1 April WHA—H 128,405 93,758
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment B4 A 2 HEAR Tk A - 10,636
Reclassified from land use rights T4 JE B R - 19,339
Reclassified to assets held for sale (Note 22) TS AR EREEE
(Fft&E22) (32,405) -
Increase in value charged to profit and loss H 18 25 10 5 = 2k 58 3 - 4,085
Exchange difference [ b, 2 B 2,348 587
At 31 March W=H=1+—H 98,348 128,405
During the year ended 31 March 2014, investment property of RERE_R-WE=ZH=+—H L4
HK$32,405,000 (FY2013: nil) was reclassified as assets held for sale. JE > B 8832,405,0009 00 ( 2 —=4EH
BUARJE - ) 2 G ECER 5B R
FELEEE-
The Group’s property interest held under operating lease to earn AR BE AR B S0 LR R DAL 2 2

Yo SERERE JTHR A O AR Bt 8 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. & W (#)
The fair value measurement information for the investment property in R4 A 9 T 5 R A R 5B 13 IR B
accordance with HKFRS 13 as at 31 March 2014 is set out below. WER_F-PE=ZH=+—HZAF
fH 5T B BB AR

Fair value measurements

Al
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for  other observable Significant
identical assets inputs unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

A I HpERZ HERZAW
WlWSZWE TERNGAZYE  BNWAZY

(%—%) (B=#H) (=)
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
T# TH# T#T
As at 31 March 2014 REZZF—-NE=ZA=+—H
— Investment property 3 LUES = 98,348 -
As at 31 March 2013 REF-=H£=A=+—H
— Investment property - REMH = 128,405 =
There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and 3 during the SR — A% 5B AR ELE = AR TR I
period. LLE
Level 2 fair values of completed investment properties have been B35 %S L E a W T/ Ry d
generally derived using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of JH 859 85 O k45 Y o FE80 AL b [ 2 W L
comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for differences B2 BRI B ERDNEEER
in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into R 27 AT R o AN ARy 15 B A T
this valuation approach is price per square foot. K2 i N5 Ok B - 7 IR 2 BT A% o
There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. S0 PR Al L 5 7l S e A2 ) o

SHERERAT 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(a) Valuation basis

The fair value of the investment properties in the PRC at 31
March 2014 has been arrived on the basis of valuation carried out
on that date by RHL Appraisal Limited, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the Group (FY2013: same).
The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of

transaction prices for similar properties at similar location.

(b) Leasing arrangements

Investment properties are leased to tenants under long-term

17. B B& W (4)
(a) A1 5 4t

R-Z—-NEZA=Z+—H -PH
BB Y Z AP A LKA AT R fE
T D A R 2 ] (LA 3% A 5 )

Z M 5L A A% TSR A BRI ) B % H
AT Z AR R (ZF— =4

S AR AR o A TS 2 7% 4B
ik URUE SR R R

fEih o

(b) HlE LK

MERBKZHEHTHP Z#

operating leases with rentals payable monthly. R A AR
18. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 18. e TH

Group

A4
2014 2013
—FoWE R =
HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tt LT
At 1 April WA —H 6,367 4,468
Additions W - 1,899
Disposal of assets B & E (95) -

Transfer to assets held for sale (Note 22) R E R EEE

(Bi7E22) (4,367) -
Reversal of provision 88 [ 3% A (1,814) -
Exchange difference [ 58 7% %K 83 =
At 31 March W=H=+—H 174 6,367
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. B J& 2 Wl BE 22

= _ _'.': “I_,,-r:'.« e e

Company
AR ]
2014 2013
R e S
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T Tl
Non-current assets: IR B & e

Unlisted shares at cost e BT e > 3% A 330,000 330,000

Current assets: Ui B E
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Wi B} g 2 R =k T 56,362 193,374
Less: provision for impairment loss Yok : AN 4B 2 B A (18,260) (136,580)
38,102 56,794

Current liabilities: i Bh A £
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE AT PR i A W] 2 3k 114,853 23,904

Note:

Pursuant to a written shareholders agreement with the Preferred Shareholder
dated 1 November 2009, “U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, converted all the Preferred Shares
into 7,409 Common Shares at a ratio of one Preferred Share to one Common
Share to the Preferred Shareholder of UIHHL on 1 November 2012. As a result
of the full conversion, the shareholding interest of the Company in UIHHL was
decreased from 100% to 74.1%.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The carrying values of the amounts due from/to
subsidiaries approximate their fair value. The amounts due from subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 and the amounts due to subsidiaries as at 31
March 2014 and 2013 were all denominated in HK dollars.

=

bk

MR SRS B A AN PTal e B A —FF
AE—H— H Z R OR i
AEA—H— H > A ] 2 A W RS 4 R Y
FAREWE A R AR (TR &R
it — I B S IR A A — B A B = L) - A L
B 2 B R AT NN BT A B S B 4 Ky 7,409 )8
W3 e o F RS O 2 AT 4 g > WA 2 DR
R Y 2 R 4 BB 2 BB EH 100% [ %74.1% ©

JE WL, W AN O 5 8 ) 2 3k T SRR ~ 4R 8
Be 3 B RATE o HEWL B A FEF IS 2 W) = 3k 0
Z IR TS BN P A A o Y T — 4R R =
FoZEZA=ZT - HZBEREE AR Z
ARIE R R WER R -=FEA
= HZ BB 8 A R 2 sk E ) DA s
fi o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
22 /N RN =Lz
o B s AR B e (4
For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&
19. Bt & 2 vl BE 4 (%)
PF#AR —F—NE=ZH=1T—HZ

EEW AT SR BEM AR SE
SEB X TBA 4k T Wi g 4 ] o

19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2014.
Principal subsidiaries are those subsidiaries that are active and have

commenced operations.

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities Interest held
RIS B EEAT IR A/ R A
Ht Bt AR R EX VS e R A5 97 2 ik A i i B g
2014 2013
L
Arrow Star Investment Limited Hong Kong Inactive 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
HKS$1
BB AR Hib WSER LR 19 T 2 R
Great Partner International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
B BB A Hib TER R R R 2 130 2 5 J R J
Great Partner Investment PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC HK$12,000,000
MR (R A RAR s AT PR AR A T T B B 4 4 L kAT A%12,000,000% 76
ot il I
Proper Class Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 74.1% 74.1%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
BmARAR il TERF RN LT A 130 2 5 A M M
Success Key Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong US$1
R P A R b3 I xeids TR RGN ST 2 15650 2 5 2 M J
Sun Shell Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 74.1% 74.1%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
i FAT A il TERF RN BT A 130 2 5 A M M
Superior Fortune Investments Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 74.1% 74.1%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
HEREAMRAH it TERF RN BT A 130 2 5 A M M
“U” Inns & Hotels Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 10,000 common shares of *74.1% 74.1%
in Hong Kong USS$1 each (2012: 7,410
common shares of US$1 each and
2,590 Series A preferred shares of
US$1 each)
R % R I T AT PR by A id EREREER 10,0005 B %1602
T (=% — A
7,410BERE BT (A 2 15670 2
T K 2,590
YT VAR
ARG
104 VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Ak 3 W 5 A B ek (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  19. [t J& 2 5] HE 25 (44)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
Name kind of legal entity

REM R,/
Hil ot e T B RN

Principal activities and
place of operations

FEEHRBRNS

Particulars of issued

share capital/registered capital

and debt securities

CRATIRA Rk 7 A
B A58 0 2wk A
2014

—F-NE

Interest held

Ji 4% i 25

2013

ZEER

“U” Inns & Hotels

Investment Limited

TR A E A AR it

Hong Kong

“U” Inns & Hotels (Chengdu)
Investment Management Limited *

IR IR AR (AR ) # % 4 B
FIR AT

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R AE A

“U” Inns & Hotel (Jing Gang Shan
Shi) Limited

R Z A G (e L)
A RA

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R AL AR

“U” Inns & Hotels (Ninghai)
Management Co., Ltd. *
TR W %R (538 ) )5 45 3

AMAH

PRC, limited
liability company

> AR A A

U Inns & Hotel (Sichuan) Limited * PRC, limited
liability company
PR %R (M) A R A ) B > A AR A E]
PRC, limited

liability company

> A BT A A

“U” Inns & Hotels (Tong Hua)
Management Co., Led ®

Pty 4% (JaAL ) 6 7 4 8L
HRAH

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R

“U” Inns (Wafangdian) Hotel
Management Co., Limited *

PRty %A% (L5 R ) i 48 B
ARAF

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R AL AR

“U” Inns & Hotels (WeiFang)
Limited ®

TR F RS (B 5) HIRA R

“U” Inns & Hotels (Wu Han)
Management Co., Ltd. *
TR A% B (B E ) 30 4

AR AT

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R AL AR

“U” Inns & Hotels (Xi An)
Management Co., Ltd. *
W %R (W% ) 65 8

AMAH

PRC, limited
liability company

> A R AE A A

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
A B R M

Management and
consulting in PRC
7 B B B B R
s ) MR 2

Hotel investment in PRC

7 v B O e

Hotel investment in PRC

7 B O 4

Hotel investment in PRC
E 3 I 4
Hotel investment in PRC

7 B ) 4

Hotel investment in PRC

A o R O e

Hotel investment in PRC
e 2 3 7 4

Hotel investment in PRC

7 v B e

Hotel investment in PRC

7 H B ) 4

1 ordinary share of HK$1 74.1%

LB T AL 8 198 76 2 5 J M AL

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$2,000,000
i it ¥ 72,000,000 75

Registered capital of 74.1%
HK$48,630,000
ki ¥ 448,630,000% 78

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$5,705,000
ik fit ¥ 465,705,000 78

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$4,000,000
kit % 44,000,000 78

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$2,249,600
k{1t 42,249,600 76

Registered capital of 74.1%
HK$28,000,000
ik it ¥ 4°28,000,0003 78

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$4,550,000
ki ¥ 44,550,000 78

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$956,980
kAT A2956,9803 76

Registered capital of 74.1%
US$10,100,000
#E it % 410,100,000 76

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%

74.1%
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19.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)  19. i 8 2 5] W &5 (48)

106

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

Particulars of issued
share capital/registered capital

Name kind of legal entity place of operations and debt securities Interest held
kL B B B CRATIRA / wh 7 A
4 o i R ER /YT e b YU T erraidl i 5 B g
2014 2013
“E-mE CR-EH
“U” Inns (Yingkou) Hotel PRC, limited ~ Hotel investment in PRC Registered capital of 74.1% 74.1%
Management Co., Ltd. * liability company HK$25,650,000
R AE (52 1) )4 B o A PR AR A A 7 B 1 A Ak A 25,650,000% 76
FIRAT
“U” Inns Hospitality Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 74.1%
(Shanghai) Co. Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$1,166,030
S (L) A RA s A7 R AE A Te i B 4 B ik i AR 1,166,030 78
ot il e 5
“U” Inns & Hotels Information PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 74.1%
Technology (Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$755,000
R %8 (L) 5 B Bedlg s A7 BREEAE A T 1 B B 4 L #k ¥ 475,000 78
FRRAT 8 ol
“U” Inns Investment Management PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 74.1% 74.1%
(Shanghai) Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$2,000,000
R % (L) By ag o s AR AR A T T B 4 L ik i 722,000,005 7
HIRAT il I 5
VXL Corporate Advisory (Shanghai) PRC, limited Management and Registered capital of 100% 100%
Limited * liability company consulting in PRC US$140,000
A SR PR () i A B AR A A o 1t 4 8 % ik fit ¥ 7% 140,0003 78
FIRAT ot ) e 25
VXL Management Services Limited Hong Kong Management services 1 ordinary share of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HKS$1
L A L i TERWBAEAMB BT A 1T 2 R
VXL Nominees Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 2 ordinary shares of *100% *100%
in Hong Kong HK$1 each
i TR WG R b IR 2 19 T8 2
W A
Yanlian International British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%

Petroleum Limited in Hong Kong US$1
S R 7 A ) B IR LR By TEFF A B e I R 2 1380 2
W 1 Mt A

A

their Chinese names.

Shares held directly by the Company.

These companies do not have English names. These are only translation of

R AR E B -

S AR T e SO R o A A AR AR

Horp SO Bl o
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. W] it HY 85 B4 85 A
ASSETS
Group
A4
2014 2013
—EomE B -S4
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T Tt
At 1 April BMHA—H 1,128 1,128
At 31 March W=HA=+—H 1,128 1,128
Note: B 5 <
Available-for-sale financial assets represent unlisted club debentures of golf clubs A B S R A R T A R Ek e 2 Ok L
which are denominated in RMB. P2 > N R RHE -
The fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets are determined ] 4k B B R B R A A
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximize VR E o % Ny s B R w22
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little Z WG R (W) > & kA K OE
as possible on entity specific estimates. The available-for-sale financial TS Z A 58 Al 5t 0w HY B T

assets are not exposed to credit risk. I 75 2 £ B L B o
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21.RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 21. FEWr sk JE ~ TR AT X JH R 1% &
DEPOSITS
Group Company
A 45 A 2 7
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZE g ZF-Z4E ZR-NE ZER-E4
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#H L Tt FHL

Non-current I B
Deposits for acquisition of hotel WSS G T ) S 2
properties e - 7,243 - =
- 7,243 - =
Current 3 34
Trade receivables B 5 BEWUR 3 - 107 - -
Other receivables At JE WSk T 3,534 2,851 6 7
Other prepayments and deposits oAb AT BRI K
o 7,421 1,453 194 195
77777 1 701975757 4,411 777777727097 202
10,955 11,654 200 202
A significant part of the Group’s sales are by credit cards or against A BRI 2 8 85 B BRI 43 DA R A 3k
payment of deposits. The trade receivables are with general credit term DL B2 $2 4 18 - ® 5 HEWOR s —
of 0 to 90 days. As at 31 March 2014, there was no trade receivables BEMENFZEEIH 2688 ) —
(FY2013: within two months and are not past due) and none of the F4EEZH=Z+—H - R 5
receivables, prepayments and deposits was impaired (FY2013: Nil). MRk (% — =4 B4R - IR R AE

183 P9 B 3 oA A 31 ) > A 08 R sk 0
T RO K e HBLRE (=% =4
S AR - ) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

21. RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND 21. ;%[%%ME ~ AR E R iR &

DEPOSITS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s receivables, prepayments and

ACEE I 2 e WOk T~ BT AR Rk 2

deposits are denominated in the following currencies: R G {E DL F %) £ W A
Group Company
N YL A
2014 2013 2014 2013
SEWE SRoSE CFoNE SF Sk
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T# 7t T T T 0 T#H L
Hong Kong dollars It 562 837 200 202
Renminbi NG 10,393 10,817 . .
10,955 11,654 200 202
22.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND 2. EMBEEERER
LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR FefE & A A

SALE

On 17 October 2013, 19 December 2013 and 22 January 2014,
“U” Inns & Hotels Investment Limited (“UIHIL”) entered into
Equity Transfer Agreements with three independent third parties to
dispose the equity interest in Tonghua, Wuhan and “U” Inns & Hotel
(Jinggangshan) Hotel Management Co. Limited for a consideration
of RMB19.0 million (equivalent approximately to HK$23.9 million),
RMB14.1 million (equivalent approximately to HK$18.0 million),
and RMB50.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$64.0 million)
respectively, with approximately RMB74.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$94.3 million) of the total consideration was not
received as at 31 March 2014.

On 4 July 2013, the Company, UIHIL and a substantial shareholder
of “U” Inns and Hotels Holdings Limited (“UIHHL”) entered into
an Asset Swap Agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed
to acquire, and the substantial shareholder agreed to dispose of the
UIHHL Shares. The consideration payable for the UIHHL Shares was
satisfied by way of 100% equity transfer of the “U” Inns & Hotels
(Xi'an) Hotel Management Co., Limited (R %R (V%) 5
PA PR AW ) (“Xian”) from the UTHIL to the substantial sharcholder.
There was no cash payment from UIHIL to the substantial shareholder

or vice versa.

UG EARA T 2013/2014 4

R_F-=ZF+HT+LtH - ZF—=
FE+A+IRBEERZF—NFE—H
ZZH - R ERERRA R (TR
%A% | ) B = 4 B S 58 = 5 AT oL SR b
WO R B R AL R R
A (IR L) S B A RA A
Z JRRE - AR 43 0 A5 N R 519,000,000
g6 (A% R #123,900,0008 78 ) ~ A R
14,100,0007C (#H ¥ 74 4718,000,000%
Jt) & A R #50,000,0007C (FH & 7% 4
64,000,000% 7T ) o 481 49 A R
74,000,0007C (HH & 1 494,300,000 %
JC) R R PEZH =+ H MR
B o

REZZ-=ZFEAMA - AKAF-FR
i % A LA B 2 BRI O 52 A BR 4 W]
(TR F AR E I ) — % B R T o
B ko R A F R K
Jil > I % M R T R R R A
JBe BB = 1A #A  RE M Je Ay =2 A A8
FH AR F) % B8 DL R i R (V5 %) T
JE 48 BT IR AR (T8 % 1) Z100% /8 B
EYENL R Y S SRR S
M 1) % L E A A B R
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22.ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND 2. R EMEBEEE A E L

LIABILITIES CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR FEMEARE(H)
SALE (Continued)
The carrying amounts of the hotel properties and land use right were ) ) 3 T A b A5 P A 2 R i i AR

A T R A S R [ ME B 2
FE B B N O Ak R R | ERT A
Bk TRl o

reclassified as “Assets held for sale” in accordance with HKFRS 5

“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discounted Operations”.

110

2014 2013
—F Mg ZE =4
HKS$’000 HK$'000
il Tt
Assets 293
At 1 April wEA—H 87,901 =
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment TR 4 A 3K - A Sk i
(Note 8) (Bt ES) 111,945 81,744
Reclassified from land use right (Note 9) G [ W= ob: K ik
(Bt &E9) 46,787 5,911
Reclassified from investment property (Note 17) ARG
(FfiE17) 32,405 -
Reclassified from other assets BN 5 B H A g A 42,700 =
Disposals of subsidiaries Hh 85 B 2 ] (71,640) -
Exchange difference fEE bo, 7% 48 833 246
At 31 March BR=E=A=Z+—H 250,931 87,901
Liabilities =L
At 1 April P A—H 749 -
Reclassified from payables and accruals T4 58 B E A R IE K
FE st IH H 85,910 749
Reclassified from deferred income tax liabilities T 4> 48 B R A P 45 B £ £ 7,072 -
Disposals of subsidiaries el A (42,149) -
Exchange difference fEE bo, 7% 48 (383) -
At 31 March BR=EH= 51,199 749

The operating result of the above hotels for the year ended 31 March

2014 were included under “hotel operations” segment as disclosed in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BREFR-WEZA=Z+—HILFS -
A 2 K8 S AR A\ B B R

Fof 5k S BT 902 & 2 [0 0 5 4 | 40 ¥ o
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 23. 8RAT &L Bl &
Group Company
A4 YN/ |
2014 2013 2014 2013

ZER-NE ZF = RN ZF=F
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T Tt T#x

Bank balances and cash on hand AT AE R K
FHEE 41,277 90,806 256 148
The carrying amounts of the bank balances and cash are denominated SRAT A ik B Bl 4 22 MR 1B T3 DA R B £
in the following currencies: AEE
Group Company
AL A4
2014 2013 2014 2013
“EF g DR -ZFE DR NE DR ZF
HKS$’000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
T#x T#T Tt T#L
Hong Kong dollars iy 5,476 29,976 179 70
Renminbi AR 21,329 50,852 - —
United States dollars xRt 14,453 9,933 77 78
Other currencies Fo At 5 19 45 - =

41,277 90,806 256 148
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

24.PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24 JEAF R 0E K g HIE H
Group Company
7 4 ) A H
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZENE ZR-EF RN R =4
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt Tt Tt
Trade payables (note b) B 5 WE AT R 3%
(F&ED ) - 133 - -
Property acquisition cost payable JE A5k 4 3 W IR AR 1,640 1,604 - -
Accrued expenses in respect of W B O D S 2
acquisitions of hotel properties JE st 2 6,547 30,450 - -
Other payables and accruals L At JE A ok T
JE 5t 3 H 15,262 17,850 1,626 1,815
Deposits received for disposal of C Wi B B g 2 7]
equity interest in subsidiaries Mt 2 ¥ 4 45,700 57,310 — =
69,149 107,347 1,626 1,815
(a) The carrying amounts of the payables and accruals are () MEAFRIE K EGHIE H Z IR T3
denominated in the following currencies: VLR 5 £ s
Group Company
A4 AR
2014 2013 2014 2013
SE-mE S®-SE CSF-NE SF-=A
HK$’°000 HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tk Tt Tt T
Hong Kong dollars oo 2,616 2,425 1,626 1,815
Renminbi N 58,765 104,922 - -
United States dollars EIn 7,768 = - =
69,149 107,347 1,626 1,815

(b) As at 31 March 2014, there was no trade payables (FY2013:
HK$77,000 and HK$56,000) aged within one month and

between one and three months respectively.

VXL CAPITAL LIMITED Annual Report 2013/2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

25. BORROWINGS 25. 1 3%
Group Company
A4 YN/ |
2014 2013 2014 2013

—F-oNE ZF = ZFNE ZF =4
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T#T T T#x

Loan from VXL Capital Partners VXL Capital Partners
Corporation (Note a) CorporationZ
ek (Fifika) 407,429 - 407,429 448,383
Amount due to ultimate A d5e 45 42 Tt
holding company ACIE ¢ - 448,383 - =
407,429 448,383 407,429 448,383
Note a:  The loan was from VXLCPL. The Company has entered into a sale Miaka :  ZEERFKTIK H VXLCPL o A4 H]
and purchase agreement dated 6 March 2014 to sell approximately BRI AR R —EZARN
69.91% of the total issued share capital of the Company to Crown H 2 B ik > th A W) B BEAT
Landmark Corporation, which become the ultimate holding JBEAS 48 B £169.91% T B 7l B LR
company. B 24 ] o 5 5 A
Al B e M M A T o
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s R -NER R -EZHEEZA=1—
borrowings were repayable as follows: H o> AR 4 B A Oy ) 2 A sk 280 A5
T
Group Company
A4 A2 )
2014 2013 2014 2013
“ERoNE CR-ZF DR NE DR =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000

T# T T T# T T#T

Within 1 year — current portion — 4 N — B 5 407,429 448,383 407,429 448,383

Pursuant to the written agreement with VXLCPL entered into R4 A 45 9] R A% B VXLCPLE] oL 2
subsequent to the end of the reporting period, VXLCPL agreed to T 155 ¥ > VXLCPLIW] % 58 46 14 8 %0 8 43
unconditionally waive part of the outstanding loan balance from AREERERGEHR - SERBHN _-ZF
HK$407.4 million as at 31 March 2014 to HK$269.3 million (Note —WME=H=+—HZ407,400,000% 0

32(c)). WA %269,300,0008 70 (i 5E32(c) ) ©

T\
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

25.BORROWINGS (Continued) 25. fig sk (%)
The effective annual interest rates at the end of the reporting period A R 2 BB AR A R F

were as follows:

2014 2013
“F-mE Sl
HK$ RMB US$ HK$ RMB Us$

# NN Fit o ARH X

Other loans M8 10.0% - 10.0% - 10.0% -
Obligations under finance lease MEHERYE - - - 5.2% - -
Amount due to ultimate holding company W 5 A A W) R 10.0% - 10.0% 10.0% = 10.0%
The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair value. A8 R 2 % T B B A B A 2 o

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the 7k Z MR T T3 DA 5 45 Rt 4 -

following currencies:

Group Company
A4 A
2014 2013 2014 2013

“EF Mg ZF=F ZF Mg ZF=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T#T T T#T

Hong Kong dollars It 407,429 370,651 407,429 370,651
United States dollars FEIT - 77,732 - 77,732
407,429 448,383 407,429 448,383
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26. 3 %E Fir 7 B¢ B 2 % £ 1R
LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a B 5 08 R AT RER W B
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current S0 500 750 0 E AR IR B - T O S P 45
tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities ot ¥ A B £ B L — R R T B AN )
relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the JRE R B[] — U A TR P M 2 P
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to RBARN > B A S
settle the balances on a net basis. The offset amounts are as follows: 5 > BV R 1 2 A T A5 B 2 B £ A% ELAH
RS o HEE BT ¢

2014 2013

TR WE DR

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# 0 T#T

Deferred income tax assets AR HiE It 450 4 2 2

Deferred income tax liabilities A 2 T 75 L £ A (13,116) (19,805)

(13,114) (19,803)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26. ¥ %E i 14 B & B AL A
LIABILITIES (Continued) (#8)
The components of deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) recognised N > B A BE B R UL 3 T e R 2 IR
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements Frfd L B (B Ay K 4 Bl
during the year are as follows: T
Fair value
Accelerated change of
depreciation investment
allowances Tax losses  properties Total
T 3% A SEE S
E#ME  BEEBR ATHEH ok

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
T¥#T T¥#T T#T T#T

At 1 April 2013 noF =4
WH—H 2) 2 (19,803) (19,803)
Credit/(Charged) to the A (HBR)
consolidated statement of B f% A 2 W e R

comprehensive income = = = —

Charged to other comprehensive e F b 2 v WA\ 1 BR

income — — - -
Reclassified to liabilities B E R E
held for sale 8 A - - 7,072 7,072
Exchange difference [ 58, 7% - - (383) (383)
At 31 March 2014 A& — PU4E
=H=+—H ) 2 (13,114) (13,114)
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are as follows: ARMERBZ BB EENT ¢
2014 2013
e L=t e
HKS$’000 HK$000
Tt T#oT
Unutilized tax losses KRB Z Bl TE & 1B 71,092 69,255
Accelerated depreciation allowances in 2k 4 8 1 365 369
71,457 69,624
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

26. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND 26. 1 % Fir £ B B 2 % B

LIABILITIES (Continued) (#)

At 31 March 2014, the deferred tax assets on the Group’s and RoFMWE=ZA=1—H  REH K
the Company’s unutilized tax losses of approximately HK$359.3 A ) B VT 45 DL RS H AR RE R B
million and HK$21.4 million (31 March 2013: HK$348.3 million ANZ A8 F BLIE S 15 43 51 £9359,300,000
and HK$20.6 million) respectively, which can be carried forward W IC 5 21,400,000% 00 (ZF — =48
against future taxable income, have not been recognised due to the =H=+—H :348,300,000% JCc &
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the Group’s tax 20,600,000% 72 ) - 1H & H 12 i 7 2K 5
losses, HK$220.4 million (31 March 2013: HK$209.4 million) has ] T - Wi R T R 0 A R TE R o
no expiry date and HK$138.7 million (31 March 2013: HK$138.9 ML 4 ) B I 2 BLAT BB ) - E AR
million) expire within five years under the current tax legislation of the 45 9 B IE G 5 > 220,400,000 0 (=
respective jurisdictions. The Company’s unutilized tax losses have no == =+—H :209,400,000
expiry date under the current tax legislation. v oo ) W % s W H M1 - 138,700,000

W (ZFE—Z£=H=Z+—H:
138,900,000%5 76 ) HI i T 4F 4 2] 1 o AR
BT BB > A AT 2 R B ALIE

JHes 1L 3 9 i o H B o
27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. e AR
(a) 2014 2013
—E—-ME R
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
Tt T¥on
Authorized: (note 1) Vi s (Khskr)
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 4,000,000,000/8t % 4 i »
HK$0.01 each (note 2) 4 BT 1H0.01#50
(FsE2) - 40,000
Issued and fully paid: CEAT MR -
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares of 1,529,600,200 B 5 %8 B >
HK$0.01 each B BT 18H0.013#5 0 15,296 15,296
Transition to no-par value regime PR E=EA = HRE
on 3 March 2014 (note 3) 2 4 T 7 B (B ES) 152,049 -
1,529,600,200 ordinary shares 1,529,600,200 8 3% 48 it 167,345 15,296

SMEBAIRAT 20132014 W

TN Y
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 #% 2 =& —PF=H =—1—H ILF /&

27.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
which commenced operation on 3 March 2014, the concept of

authorised share capital no longer exists.

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the company’s shares no longer have
a par or nominal value with effect from 3 March 2014. There
is no impact on the number of shares in issue or the relative

entitlement of any of the members as a result of this transition.

In accordance with the transitional provisions set out in section
37 of Schedule 11 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) on 3 March 2014 any amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account has become part of the company’s

share capital.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at

meetings of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard

to the company’s residual assets.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Prior to 3 March 2014, the application of the share premium

account was governed by sections 48B of the predecessor Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). In accordance with the

transitional provisions set out in section 37 of Schedule 11 to the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), on 3 March 2014

any amount standing to the credit of the share premium account

has become part of the company’s share capirtal (see note 27(a)).

The use of share capital as from 3 March 2014 is governed by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

27. AR (#)

(a) (%)

MRk :

B2 -

Bt %3

BBER_Z-NWE=H=H
BB 2 W 4 (5
6223) » ¥ T M A 2 M A5
R o

% BT W A A B (5622
) B35tk H ZF — 44
ZH=HE > KA B A
T A B 5 T A o R g A
OB AT B 2 W H ST T
JBE R 2 3 ) SIS A ] B
go

1% AW A R E R (5F622
=) MR 1137 2 0 U
XM E—NEZHZH
JBE A ik e =2 AT T £ R A
B 48 2 AR A ] EAR 2 — 3
4o

W 9 B AN AR IS I IR B
B WHEAEARAF Z B RARE Lk
Je— S HEAT 4R 5 o WA A B Z AR
T 55 > B A I B 3 A ] S

(DA

(b) W2 B & H W
W TF—PUAE = H = H O B iR
16 W 2 B 7% 52 1 5 v 2 B R
(56323 ) SE48BIR B & - 1K IR A W
AR (56227 ) B 11583715
B Z PR - A R — AR =
HZ=H o B8 iR 2 A2 ) 805 6%
RO AR By AR A W) R AR Z — 4y
(2B M #E27() ) e H =2 — Y47
SAZH8 BARZMHZ/HEA
AP (5B622% ) BE 4% o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

28.RESERVES 28. fifi ffi
(a) The Group (a) AHEME
Employee
share-based
Share Capital  compensation Exchange Revaluation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
VB 3 2
Bt i 0 BARME R EH B 5t L ] At A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T#x T T
At 1 April 2012 RoB—ENA—A 152,049 = 2,587 50,328 12,025 (285,756) (68,767)
Translation exchange difference MR - - - 600 - - 600
Conversion of preferred shares by — [ A
a subsidiary - 51,671 - (13,282) (4,919) - 33,470
Transfer to accumulated losses N R G e 2]
upon lapse of share options - - (2,587) = = 2,587 =
Loss for the year FEREH = = = = = (70,799) (70,799)
Deferred tax on revaluation increase BB AR BRI - - - = (6,050) = (6,050)
Property revaluation LEI X - - - - 13,018 - 13,018
At 31 March 2013 REB-ZEZA=F—H 152,049 51,671 - 37,646 14,074 (353,968) (98,528)
Translation exchange difference bz R - - - 2,083 - = 2,083
Realisation of exchange gain upon S R RN E A7 2
disposal and deregistration of HE S A A
foreign subsidiarics = = - (5,110) = = (5,110)
Loss for the year ERER = = = = = (45,288) (45,288)
Property revaluation LEIX - = = = = = =
Transition to no-par regime REZF-NEZAZAREER
on 3 March 2014 (note 27b) Tl B¢ (kb ) (152,049) - - - - - (152,049)
At 31 March 2014 REF-MEZA=+—H - 51,671 - 34,619 14,074 (399,256) (298,892)
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28.RESERVES (Continued) 28. fift i (%)
(b) The Company (b) A2 H]
Employee
share-based
Share compensation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
VLB Ay 32 A8
ZEEB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
R T R T¥I0
At 1 April 2012 REF-ZHNA—H 152,049 2,587 (208,799) (54,163)
Transfer to accumulated losses e F R S ER
upon lapse of share options 2ilER - (2,587) 2,587 -
Loss for the year N e - - (48,091) (48,091)
At 31 March 2013 BT =4E
=Z=H=+—H 152,049 - (254,303) (102,254)
Loss for the year FENEHE — = (68,392) (68,392)
Transition to no-par regime HoFE-NE=ZH=H
on 3 March 2014 (note 27b) 100 0% 2 i A )
(HE27b ) (152,049) = - (152,049)
At 31 March 2014 i F— YA
EFE—L - = (322,695) (322,695)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

29. COMMITMENTS 29. 7R ¥
(a) Lease commitments (a) P RS
(i) Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the () FEER B AR — NG %
lessor A
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group had contracted PR R =R
with tenants for the following minimum lease receivables: ZHAZ+F—H REEEM S
WA VAT B AR AH 5 Ak
2014 2013
ZR-NEE SR =4
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T#T
Not later than 1 year A —a 3,590 4,922
Later than 1 year and —4E DL _EARR A
not later than 5 years 14,360 19,687
Opver five years ik 6,134 17,462
24,084 42,071
Operating lease rececivables represent future aggregate 2 R A AR AR R A AR )
minimum lease receipts by the Group from non-cancellable T B 26 2 A W] L E R
operating leases of its investment properties. Typically, leases A B I 2 A 4 R AR R AR
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for lease term of ten to AR o — i 55 - FHL) b & T
eleven years. HE AR

L 4 i ] 52 #H o
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29. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 29. ¥ (#)
(a) Lease commitments (Continued) (a) PLEHRWE (4)
(ii)  Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the (i) AEE RN — R E %
lessee AR
At 31 March 2014 and 2013, the Group had commitments W WAER R =4
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented ZAZ+—H  REEREAR
premises, which fall due as follows: ] R AR s B H DL R AR
WS4 2 M W 3 2 R s
e &
2014 2013
S L =L
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F#x T
Not later than 1 year B4 1,544 1,429
Later than 1 year and —4E P, AH R 0 AR
not later than 5 years 391 890
1,935 2,319
(b) Capital commitments (b) EARKIWE
As at 31 March 2014, the Group has commitment in relation RoZ—PE=ZHA=+—H > &%
to acquisition of hotel properties from China Post Group and A e R R B R A
the outstanding commitment amounted to RMBO0.6 million S Z RS o G A ARYE S AR
(equivalent to approximately HK$0.8 million) (31 March 2013: #600,0007C (HH & #* £1800,000%5
HK$0.8 million). ) (ZF-=ZF=A=+—H:

800,000% JC ) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

30.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. BH Wi U5 22 5
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during AR PN BB Tk 7 HEAT 2 R BB R o
the year.
(a) Interest expense (a) M BB %
During the year, the Group has interest expense payable to 459 A AR B R W RE2S BT R 2
VXLCPL, amounting to HK$44.7 million for the loan as B A T VXLCPLZ F) B B 32 %
disclosed in Note 25 (FY2013: HK$42.8 million). 44,700,000 76 ( =& — =4 BB

AR 1 42,800,000 T ) ©

The loan from VXLCPL is interest bearing at fixed rate, VXLCPLZ 8k % [H & F XK 51 B -
unsecured and repayable on 1 October 2014. Jigg S AR A B R R — A+ A
B -
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEMEM &
2014 2013
RN R =4
HK$’°000 HK$’000
T T oo
Directors’ fee o - -
Salaries and other short-term employee it 4 B FC b e 391 4 B AR A
benefits 2,729 2,318
Pension costs — MPF BAR S A — o i A R 4 15 15
2,744 2,333
31.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 31. & Fif 8 2 W
31 March
2014
—E e
ZH=1H
HK$’000
Filh e
Gain on disposal before taxation: 8 Z BB AT 2 A
Xiangfan (a) FEHE (3) 19,206
Tulufan (b) 1 %6 % (b) 6,989
Buerjin (c) i A (o) 2,335
28,530

ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁlﬁ’&@&zq&; 20
" 7, w—;ng <R
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31.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31. B PR 8 A v (4)

(a) On 31 May 2013, UIHIL entered into a disposal agreement to @ R-F—Z=Z22£HH=Z1+—H &K
dispose 100% equity interest of Xiangfan, which was a hotel, to i % A 5T or B Gk - DLBL AR
an independent third party, for a cash consideration of RMB24.9 61 A\ R %24,900,0007C (H & it 4
million (equivalent to approximately HK$31.3 million). The 31,300,000 75 ) Hi B FE 4k (—
transaction was completed on 3 July 2013. The Group’s share of WG ) Z100%BHET — BB L=
net assets of Xiangfan at the date of disposal are as follows: o HER G UR_F-=Z44LRH

= H GBI o AHE [ A3 A BT Y B
HW 2 % S E T
HK$'000
T# T
Nets assets disposed of: Pt B 2 A A
Property, plant and equipment W3 - B Bk M 24,878
Land use right e 4 3,013
Receivables, prepayments and deposits R WAk T ~ TELA R T e % 4 38
Bank balances and cash SRAT R BR KBl & 4
Payables and accruals JE A 3k JE N M IR H (18,759)
Total net assets B AR A 9,174
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H A — R A 2 W) 2 A
Consideration received and receivable W e i W 2 AR 31,323
Net assets disposed of Pt 5 2 A (9,174)
Professional costs for the disposal of H A A R 2 ) R s 2 S AR
interests in subsidiaries (2,943)
Gain on disposal before taxation 8 2 BB &) 19,206
Less: taxation Tk : B IE (432)
Gain on disposal after taxation & Z BB A 18,774
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: 8 A A 2 Bl i A\ R
Consideration received during the year ENERZRE 31,323
Professional costs associated with disposal of 4% P4 47 B ) £ % P JB 2 ) 1 i 2 B S B AR
interests in subsidiaries during the year (2,943)
Bank balances and cash disposed of during RTINS Z AT A R KB A
the year (4)
28,376
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # % —F— 4= =+— H 1L F/F

31. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) On 8 February 2013, UIHIL entered into a disposal agreement

(b)

to dispose 100% equity interest of Tulufan, which was a hotel, to

an independent third party, for a cash consideration of RMB15.1

million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.1 million). The

transaction was completed on 1 July 2013. The Group’s share of

net assets of Tulufan at the date of disposal are as follows:

31. B W& 2 B (%)

N -=ZFTHNH R EEE
WO B 1 > DABL AR R
15,100,0007C (A 4719,100,000
W) e AR (—HHEE) Z
100% B HE 7 — S B SL 58 =05 o %
HR G OR_F—=4LtH—H

56 B o A S A4k 48 3 7 B H
BzEEFMENT:
HK$’000
T# 0
Nets assets disposed of: Pt th 8 2 o R
Property, plant and equipment W3 - B Bk 13,579
Land use right - 4 1,386
Receivables, prepayments and deposits JRE Wk T~ LA AR R R 16,857
Construction in progress e TR 97
Bank balances and cash SRAT A R KB4 5
Payables and accruals JRE AN 5k T % M it IR H (20,431)
Total net assets ¥ A 11,493
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary B — T B B o W] 2 B A
Consideration received and receivable T W % R W 2 AR A 19,092
Net assets dispossed of B i B 2 A A (11,493)
Professional costs for the disposal of H B 7 B A ) HE A 2 S AR
interests in subsidiaries (610)
Gain on disposal before taxation B 2 KRBT 2 A 6,989
Less: taxation W B (267)
Gain on disposal after taxation 8 Z BRBLR A 6,722
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: A E A Z Bl AT
Consideration received in prior year AR AR B T 2 AR 19,092
Professional costs associated with disposal of — ABAEARFEA B H & 7 P 2 5] 4 2 2 B 38 AR
interests in subsidiaries in prior year (610)
Bank balances and cash disposed of classified ~#AE4EFERT & A Bk [FefEth B g A 2
as “assets held for sale” in prior year BATH R Bl (5)

s AR RA T 2011;'3‘/"%.

18,477
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31.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 31. B PR 8 A v (4)

(c)

On 31 May 2013, UIHIL entered into a disposal agreement to © RZEBE-Z=ZH£HTA=Z+—H &
dispose 100% equity interest of Buerjin, which was a hotel, to i % A 5T or B Gk - DLBL AR
an independent third party, for a cash consideration of RMB9.3 B R #9,300,0007C (HH % 7R 4
million (equivalent to approximately HK$11.7 million). The 11,700,000%% 7T ) H} £ 75 @ i (—
transaction was completed on 24 February 2014. The Group’s A1 ) 2 1009 B HE ¥ — 44 i 3 58
share of net assets of Buerjin at the date of disposal are as follows: S oERHER R -WET

H =419 H 58 B o A 5 18] 3 Ak A 78
HR WA A2 B EFENT

HK$’000
T
Nets assets disposed of: B 8 2 A A
Property, plant and equipment LERE Y& ] 10,215
Land use right - M {5 R 1,568
Payables and accruals JRE A 5k T % M it IR H (2,959)
Total net assets BT 8,824
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary B — [ B > W) 2 2 A
Consideration received and receivable % e % HE e 22 AR 11,801
Net assets dispossed of B 8 2 % A (8,824)
Professional costs for the disposal of H B 7 B B A ) HE 2 2 S AR
interests in subsidiaries (642)
Gain on disposal before taxation B Z BB AT 2R 2,335
Less: taxation = Al IE -
Gain on disposal after taxation & Z BB 2R 2,335
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: B EE B AT :
Consideration received during the year FEN TRz RE 11,801
Professional costs associated with disposal of 45 P4 A B Hi 5 17 Bt JB§ 2> w) B 25 < B 3 R A
interests in subsidiaries during the year (642)
11,159
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32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

a.

On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with ChangJiang Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited
(“Chang]iang Securities”), the placing agent, pursuant to which
the placing agent has conditionally agreed to procure, on a best-
effort basis, the placees to subscribe for a promissory note up
to an aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000. The
transaction was completed on 25 June 2014 with net proceeds
of HK$119,316,000 raised. The promissory note bears interest
at 3% per annum; and is of 3-years maturity period repayable in

June 2017.

On 19 June 2014, the Company entered into another Placing
Agreement with ChangJiang Securities, the placing agent,
pursuant to which the placing agent conditionally agreed to place
up to 300,000,000 placing shares to the placees at the placing
price of HK$0.36 on a best effort basis. On 26 June 2014, the
Group has obtained the approval from the listing committee of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, which has agreed
to grant a listing of and permission to deal with the placing
shares. As of the date of this report, ChangJiang Securities is in
the process of completing this transaction with administrative
procedures in progress. The estimated net proceeds to be raised

from the placing shares will be approximately HK$107,375,760

and the transaction is expected to be completed no later than 2

July 2014.

32. fie i 112 IR

W —MAENATIUE s RAH
B B QB R L3 5 A (k)
ARAAE ([RIT#EZ]) &R
i ek > 4R L > B AR R A TR R
S IR TNk N W N N
48 % Bt 2 #120,000,000% J6 Z A&
SRR HEHR B UR R4
NH T H SR - 4 Bk E
A #5119,316,0009 JC © 7R bt 52 48
AR RS FT B - A =4 R
F— LN H BB AR -

WoF—WENATILE SRR
] B B AR R YL B SR RT o 55—
5 % 6 - B O > OB ARELA MR 1
[ 72 Fi e g Bk 4 1) R N L B Bt
2300,000,000/8 At € B 43 > Fii £
8 50.36% 0 o it —F— 4N H
TN H o AR DA WG A
SHARATR LHZE iR
R R b R B o AR
W B W > =08 %7 BLOE Bk 58 R &2
5 e BLAT B A o T B R i T
AR AW P AT K TE N A A
107,375,760 JC » 1 32 5 T8 1 f 8
W F—ELH ZH%E®
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32.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (Continued)

(0,

On 27 June 2014, VXLCPL and the Company entered into an
agreement, under which VXLCPL has agreed to unconditionally
and irrevocably waive part of the outstanding borrowing as at 31
March 2014 due to VXLCPL amounting to HK$138,124,765. As
a result of such waiver, the loan payable to VXLCPL amounted to

HK$269,304,381 with no further interest and other obligations.

For the repayment of the amount of HK$269,304,381,
the Company and VXLCPL has entered into an escrow
agreement under which the Company will transfer an amount
of HK$220,000,000 from the net proceeds of the placing
arrangements as mentioned in (a) and (b) to the agreed escrow
account on or before 4 July 2014. The remaining amount of
HK$49,304,381 will also transferred to that escrow account on or
before 29 August 2014. All sums in the escrow account shall be
released to VXLCPL on 2 October 2014.

On 27 June 2014, CLC advanced an amount of HK$10,000,000
to the Company which is unsecured and interest free. CLC
has agreed not to demand the Company for repayment until
after the Group has received the remaining disposal proceeds of
HK$61,400,000 from the disposals of subsidiaries mentioned
above; and until the Group has sufficient fund for its working

capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 # £ _F— 4= =+—H IL )&

33.SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT 33. HE ML
PROPERTIES
Attributable
Interest to
Location Use Tenure the Group
L
o ¥ ik it ] JRE Al HE 25
Zhouyue Building Commercial Medium 74.1%
West Kunlun Avenue
Bayuquan District
Yingkou City
Liaoning Province
PRC
HLROR B [LES H 74.1%
i
e Xy
B
fil s
B R
34.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 34. it £ 15 I B R
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 129 were HHERFOR _F—WEANA=ZTHE
approved by the board of directors on 30 June 2014. WEHUR SE40H B 1298 Z 45 & B

Fo
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Glossary
) 52

“AGM(s)”
[ 378 4 K 17

“Articles of Association”

[ 4 4k 7 72 40 1
“Associate(s)”
Nk YN

“Board”
[#EHE ]

“CG Code”
[ (EEEwRD

“Company” or “VXL Capital”

(AW ] g [ b 4 i |

“Companies Ordinance”

[ 2wl il |

“Crown Group”

[ 556 4% M

Directors

[ % |

“Group”
[A4E 1

“HKS"
[T |

“HKICPA”
[ 8 & wt il A 8

“Hong Kong”
[ %]

Annual General Meeting(s) of the Company
AT e R AR K

The Articles of Association of the Company

A 2 ) AL A 2 7 A 1

Has the meaning ascribed to it in the Listing Rules unless otherwise specified in the

financial statements

FA b BRI BT R < 0 2 - T AR N ) A 9 W BR A

The board of Directors
KATFZEEG

Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

v S B R PO BT IR (A A R T I

VXL Capital Limited
LR S AT PR 2 ]

The Companies Ordinance, Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended from time

to time

LGB 2R AR (R RETT)

Crown International Corporation Limited together with its associates

550 R BR A8 I A R 2 R LI O

Directors of the Company

ARAF#EH

The Company and its subsidiaries

A0 ) B S Wi Jig 2

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
Wt B EE R

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

AU al AT

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R ] A v e ) AT B [
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“Listing Rules”

b A

“Model Code”

[ o < )

“pPRC”
[ |

“RMB” or “Renminbi”
NG

“RQN Committee”
[RQNZ H 7 |

“SEO”

[ 77 Lo 301 B oo

“Shares”

et |

“Shareholder(s)”
[ B3 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[Tk &2 it

“Substantial Shareholder(s)”
=38

“VXLCPL”

[VXLCPL J

Glossary (Continued)
i 52 (7))

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended from

time to time

W22 B Gl or B LRI (R R AE T )

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules
LT AL R B 8 TRz (R BT N E R AT R SR 5 AR AR AL

The Peoples’ Republic of China
rpr g N R 3k i

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
N R - 0 B

Remuneration, Quality and Nomination Committee

B REARAZEE

The Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, as amended

from time to time

AW EOIEIE L — B S R BRG] (A RERT)

Ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company
A ] JBEA v 2 T

Holder(s) of Share(s)
I ZLESEEDN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
FWwH AR5 AMRA

Has the meaning ascribed to in Schedule I to the SFO
B3 55 B0 & ) B 2R 10T R 7 2 0 2

VXL Capital Partners Corporation Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands and the former ultimate holding company of the Company
T JE iR L B S kR Or 4 B VXL Capital Partners Corporation LimitedZ 24 7] » 25 A
O3 ) Z R g e 1 B 8
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Financial Summary

S 25 47 22

The following is a summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the

last five financial periods.

24X 5 7 S5 3 1 A B0 ) 2 A SR A AR A
G

1/4/2009 to 1/4/2010 to 1/4/2011 to 1/4/2012 0 1/4/2013 to
31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014

1/4/2009% 1/4/2010% 1/4/2011 % 1/4/2012% 1/412013%

31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000

Tt T SR T T

Turnover BEH 2,329 4,401 6,436 6,627 5,981
Loss before taxation Bt i s 18 (154,278) (66,414) (52,073) (67,355) (39,459)
Taxation charge FIE 3 (3) (3) (345) (5,172) (1,292)
Loss for the year 4 4 s 1R (154,281) (66,417) (52,418) (72,527) (40,751)

The following is a summary of the total assets and liabilities of the Group as

at 31 March 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 2014.

AREP_B—BE-ZB-—F %
—IE R -ZHER_F-NE=H
S YR R AR R T

31/3/2010 31/3/2011 31/3/2012 31/3/2013 31/3/2014

HKS$’000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T T T T T

Total assets % AR 589,758 631,503 610,045 581,425 501,198
Total liabilities A fE (444,285) (535,100) (540,152) (576,282) (540,891)
Total equity RE 25 4B 145,473 96,403 69,893 5,143 (39,693)
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2014 AGM will be held on Wednesday, 17 September 2014 at
11:30 a.m. at Executive Boardroom in Business Centre, Level 7, Island
Shangri-La, Hong Kong, Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong
Kong. Details of the 2014 AGM are set out in the Notice of 2014 AGM
sent to the Shareholders together with a form of proxy along with this

Annual Report.

SHARE-RELATED SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please contact the

Company’s Share Registrars:

Name: Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Address: 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Poing, Hong Kong.
Telephone: ~ +852 2153 1688

Facsimile: +852 3020 5058

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Corporate press releases, financial reports and other investor information
of the Company are available online at the Company’s website,

heep://www.vxlcapital.com.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2014

Announcement of 2013-14 final results 30 June 2014

2014 AGM 17 September 2014

Announcement of 2014-15 interim results November 2014

COMPANY’S MARKET CAPITALIZATION

HK$741.8 million as at year end, based on closing price of HK$0.485 per
Share on 31 March 2014.

Shareholders’ Information
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Corporate Information

ACIN<gE)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS HHY

Executive Directors PiTHESR

HEREE (R2F—HEAH =+tH
WRAL) (HFFTEN)

BihiGeE (R 2F—NERH = +tH
WETANT) (56 /017 B0 48 7 J 56 [ ) 5 A B )

EEKRBE(RF-HFEALH = +LH
BHL) (EFFEH)

B EEAE (RZF-NERLAZ+tEH
WEAT) (56 o 40 B 58 o T B 4 )

Mr. WONG Hoi Kin (appointed on 27 May 2014)
(Chairman of the Board)
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung (appointed on 27 May 2014)
(Group Chief Executive Officer and Group Chief Financial Officer)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah (resigned on 27 May 2014)
(Chairman of the Board)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (resigned on 27 May 2014)
(Group President and Group Chief Executive Officer)

134

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LIU Hong Shen
(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. MENG Jinlong
(appointed on 27 May 2014)

FHPfTHESE
BIALR e A

(R-Z—WELA -+ EHBERE)

Eoe ot b

(R-Z—WERLA -+ EHBERE)

Independent Non-executive Directors B E AT E S
Mr. LONG Tao E W e 2

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. REN Guo Hua

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. CHEN Fang

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. David YU Hon To

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

(resigned on 27 May 2014)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung (Chairman)
(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. WONG Hoi Kin
(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. XIAO Huan Wei (Chairman)
(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah
(resigned on 27 May 2014)

(RZF—NERLA - ELHERE)

AT 1 2 5 A

(RZF—NERLA - ELHERE)

BT St 2

(RZF—NERLA - ELHERE)

S A e A F AL

(RZZF—NERH =+ L HEHE)

iR S A

(RZZF—NERH =+ L HEHE)

i M i S 2

(RZZF—NERH =+ L HEHE)

PITZAES
B e e ()

(RZZ—WELA -+ EHBERE)

iR A

(R=F—HERAZ+EHEZRE)

H e ()

(R =F—HNERLA +-LHEE)

SR B

(R =F—HNERLA - LHEE)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LONG Tao (Chairman)

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. REN Guo Hua

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. CHEN Fang

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. David YU Hon To (Chairman)

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P.

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

(resigned on 27 May 2014)

REMUNERATION, QUALITY AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. REN Guo Hua (Chairman)

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. WONG Hoi Kin

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. LIAO Pin Tsung

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. LONG Tao

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. CHEN Fang

(appointed on 27 May 2014)
Mr. Alan Howard SMITH, J.P. (Chairman)

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Datuk LIM Chee Wah

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. David YU Hon To

(resigned on 27 May 2014)
Mr. SOO Ying Pooi

(resigned on 27 May 2014)

Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)

o ElERE (B)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. KWOK Siu Man

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suite 901, 9th Floor,
Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Ordinary Shares (Stock Code: 727)

WEBSITES

VXL Capital Limited

htep://www.vxlcapital.com

U-Inn Hotels

http://www.uinns.cn
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